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Who are we?

HRAE

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) is the full-fledged independent listed entity auditor regulator for Hong Kong with direct
powers of inspection, investigation and discipline concerning auditors of listed entities, recognition of overseas auditors of
listed entities and oversight of the performance of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in respect of their
functions of registration, setting of standards on professional ethics and auditing and assurance; and setting of continuing
professional development requirements in relation to PIE auditors. It may also initiate an enquiry into possible non-compliance
with accounting requirements by listed entities. The FRC is committed to upholding the quality of financial reporting of listed
entities in Hong Kong and enhancing investor protection, thereby reinforcing Hong Kong’s position as a competitive international
financial centre.
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Embarking on a New Journey

FRTER

Upon the enactment of the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance in January 2019, the FRC has been taking
steps to prepare itself for its role as the full-fledged independent auditor regulator of Hong Kong. These include mapping out the
appropriate governance and organisation structure, developing policies and guidelines for its widened scope of statutory duties
and fostering collaborations and relations with local and international regulators. Each step is important in equipping ourselves to
embrace the opportunities and challenges presented in the new auditor regulatory regime. After months of intense preparations,
the FRC is ready to embark on a new journey.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFHRE

It is my honour and privilege to be re-appointed as the Chairman of the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) under the new auditor regulatory regime with
effect from 1 October 2019. This annual report with the theme “Embarking on
a New Journey” not only reviews our preparatory work for the transformation
into the full-fledged independent auditor regulator but also the mission and
objectives that the FRC has set to ensure the effectiveness of our regulatory
role.

A challenging and rewarding year

| feel truly grateful that the FRC has gone through another challenging yet
rewarding year. Challenging in the sense that under various constraints, we
had many important matters to deal with, some of which were uncharted
waters to us. Yet at the same time, the experience was highly rewarding as we
had been able to surmount every single obstacle, strode forward as planned
and finally entered the new era of auditor regulation.
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After months of intense
preparations, the FRC has
successfully transformed itself
to become the full-fledged
independent oversight body for
regulating auditors of public

interest entities on 1 October 2019.
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Safeguarding public interest through expanded
functions

After months of intense preparations, the FRC has successfully transformed
itself to become the full-fledged independent oversight body for regulating
auditors of public interest entities on 1 October 2019. In the light of the
evolving regulatory landscape and our expanded statutory responsibilities
under the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 (the
Amendment Ordinance), we have set directions and strategies that are
conducive to the effective implementation of our functions under the new
regime, the long-term development of the FRC and the effective oversight of
the management process. They are the cornerstone for us to fulfil our mission
of enhancing the quality of financial reporting of public interest entities in Hong
Kong, deepening investors’ confidence in the quality of corporate reporting
and safeguarding public interest.

Establishing new governance and organisation
structures

To fully and effectively discharge our expanded functions and execute our
redefined strategies, we have established a new governance structure. The
Board, comprising 15 members, is the ultimate governing body of the FRC.
Five committees have been set up to advise the Board on matters in relation
to different functions of the FRC, namely inspection, investigation, discipline,
finance and corporate affairs and compensation and nomination. At the same
time, we engage even more actively with our Honorary Advisers who, with
a wide spectrum of professional expertise, provide their insights and advice
to the FRC. This is particularly crucial when our role is significantly expanded
under the new regime.

We have also put in place a new organisation structure with clear segregation
of responsibilities and accountabilities for different departments to ensure
effective management and efficient operation.

Setting an objective and transparent regulatory
framework

Determined to establish an objective and transparent regulatory framework
that safeguards public interest, the FRC has adopted the principles of being
sensible and reasonable when establishing our policies, guidelines and
procedures which serve as the regulatory benchmarks in respect of our
various statutory functions. The reason is, we do not intend to over-regulate or
under-regulate, both of which are detrimental to the long-term development of
the audit profession.

We hold the belief that as an effective regulator, our ultimate goal is to promote
sustainable development of the audit profession through the improvement in
audit and financial reporting quality. Therefore, our role is not only to adjudicate
but also to educate, and to encourage but not to discourage. | have full
confidence that the systems and measures we introduced will facilitate us to
achieve this goal.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FERE @

Introducing new initiatives to recruit and retain
talents

In any organisation, competent staff are the prerequisite for things well done.
To meet our management and operational needs under the new regime,
we have put talent retention, acquisition, and development at the top of our
agenda. In May 2019, the Board commissioned an external consultancy firm
to carry out a “Study on Remuneration and Benefits Structure”, based on
which the FRC will recruit, develop and retain professional and passionate staff
to ensure effective regulatory outcomes for our existing and new functions.

Creating an open and frank corporate culture

A good corporate culture helps nurture an effective working relationship
between the board and the management and promotes effective regulatory
outcomes that could foster the sustainable development of an organisation.
With this in mind, the FRC strives to create a corporate culture that embraces
openness, frankness and communication in which our staff would be able
to demonstrate leadership skill, execute strategies set, deliver the expected
regulatory outcomes and thrive in their career.
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The FRC strives to create a corporate culture that embraces openness, frankness and communication.
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Strengthening collaborations with local, Mainland  NZREEZANH: ~ Pytth K% BRI B B 25 4 4
and international regulators HE1E

As an effective auditor regulator of a leading capital market, it is of paramount B #[ER B EIE —FEHNEARTISEA—ES BN
importance that the FRC connects and collaborates with financial regulators — ErABES &M - B & 2 14 B 5 B i ~ R 0B
domestically and globally. EREEEREE

We continued our close collaboration with our local regulatory counterparts 1B BEREN MAH#H LS - BAMESHERER
through case referrals and knowledge sharing. S -

We have further strengthened our ties with Mainland regulators to promote  FH{IRE—FMNREA N ESEMIBIHE » DMEEE
cross-boundary regulatory collaboration. On 22 May 2019, we signed a  3BEEEAE - N2019E5A822H  HFIZERIZ A

Memorandum of Understanding with the Ministry of Finance of the PRC in  NtbhMEsT TEEfsET R BB EBHE L o
relation to gaining access to audit working papers located in the Mainland.
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Signing Ceremony of MOU on Cooperation in Audit Regulation

22.05&51 9
W

On 22 May 2019, the FRC signed a Memorandum of Understanding with the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.
H201955 A22H » MISERB DB KA HFE R T -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)
FERE @

In order to ensure the effective discharge of our ultimate responsibility of
oversight on the relevant functions of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) under the Amendment Ordinance, a Statement
of Protocol on Oversight Arrangement was signed between the FRC and the
HKICPA on 27 September 2019.
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A Statement of Protocol on Oversight Arrangement was signed between the FRC and the HKICPA on 27 September 2019.
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We have also forged an extensive network with a number of regional
and international financial regulators such as the International Forum of
Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR), the UK Financial Reporting Council (UK
FRC) and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB) of the
US. The connections we built allow us to keep abreast of the latest global
audit and regulatory standards and best practice, and to apply them in the
local context, where appropriate.

The increasing connectivity among global capital markets certainly calls for
wider and deeper regulatory collaboration. The FRC will remain steadfast in
fostering relationship and cooperation with regulators around the world with
the common goal of enhancing audit quality and investor protection.
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Expressing heartfelt gratitude

This statement would be incomplete without expressing heartfelt gratitude to
our former Council Members, Board Members, Honorary Advisers, Members
of the Financial Reporting Review Panel and Members of the Process Review
Panel. We highly appreciate their ardent support. Their collective wisdom
and valuable contributions helped shape the FRC as it is today. My special
thanks go to the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau which has offered
its resourceful support to the FRC throughout the years. Last but not least,
I would like to convey my sincerest thanks to our four funding parties — the
Companies Registry Trading Fund, the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (HKEX), the HKICPA and the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC)
for their financial support since 1 December 2006 till 30 September 2019.
Under the new regime, we will become entirely self-funded through levies
from auditors of public interest entities, public interest entities and sellers and
purchasers of securities to be collected from 2022.

Embarking on a new journey

Riding on the experience gained in the past, the FRC is embarking on a
journey with opportunities and also challenges. We will remain committed to
our mission in upholding the quality of financial reporting, providing investors
with stronger protection and strengthening Hong Kong’s position as a leading
international financial centre.
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Dr Kelvin Wong, JP
BERHEL  AFHLT
Chairman
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EMBARKING ON A NEW JOURNEY
FRITERR

The New Auditor Regulatory Regime ZEENEEHIE

The Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance took effect on 1 (B FEFE SR /H ((EET ) IEHIYR2019F10 A1 B AR - 12
October 2019 which marked the beginning of the FRC’s new journey as the  (EEREIER B AT S EHBE T LB 260
full-fledged, independent oversight body of auditors of listed entities (“PIEsS”) of — ESE#EHFT BI2A9EALE -

Hong Kong.

Mission and Vision
fonEAfES

Discharges our statutory duties as an effective regulator

BT RA B EEREAATEBRE

Upholds the quality of financial reporting of listed entities in Hong Kong
HEEE TTERBYBERNESR

Strengthens cooperation with financial regulators both locally and
internationally

NS AN M BIFR & @0 BS B IR EV S 1F

Promotes good corporate governance
RERIFHRRIES
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EMBARKING ON A NEW JOURNEY (continued)
HRIER@

Governance Structure
EIRRNE

Honorary Advisory
Panel

HERER

Process Review Panel

RFEREEE

Audit Financial
Committees Investigation Reporting
== Board Review Panel
EitRAEEEE BEERENEESE

Oversight, Finance Compensation
Policy and and Corporate and
Governance Affairs Nomination
AL ; Committee Committee Committee :
BEREST o -

SRZRE § Committee ¥ om. pmg W sinkex N FHRES Sommites

Investigation
Inspection and
Committee Compliance

Financial
Reporting
Review
HEEES BAEEE EREES 28 MRERBNEZES
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Strategic Focus

KRS E 2,

Under the new regime, the FRC is determined to fulfil our mission and vision
through the following strategies:

HEFEETET - BBERBDROBEEA TREABRKBNEBMESR

Safeguarding public interest through the
implementation of an objective and transparent
regulatory framework
FREBRTEBENMAZHAENEEER  #ERQ y,
AR /

Connecting and collaborating with financial
regulators locally and globally to enhance audit
quality ‘
EAMMBEFENEHEEMBEVBERS y,
18- MRAESE R ’

Introducing new initiatives to retain, acquire and
develop talents to achieve effective regulatory
outcomes

HEITHTEREAMRE - BBRIBEE AT - UER /
B EEE KR ’

Creating an open and frank corporate culture
for the sustainable development of the FRC
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THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT
EERNEER
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PROFILES OF BOARD MEMBERS
EERRE[E

The Board

The Board is the highest governing body of the FRC. Currently, the Board
comprises 15 members including the Chairman who is non-executive, 13 non-
executive directors and 1 executive director.

Chairman

ESi

=EER
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BHITES -

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (from 2018-12-15; current appointment expires on
2021-09-30)

ERHEL KP4+ (H2018-12-15#E : BWETH
#1742021-09-30/& 5 )

Dr Wong is the Chairman of Financial Reporting Council and a member of
the Operations Review Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption.

He is an Executive Director, a Deputy Managing Director and the Chairman of
Corporate Governance Committee of COSCO SHIPPING Ports Limited. He
is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of seven listed companies in
Hong Kong.

He was a Non-Executive Director of Securities and Futures Commission
(2012-2018), the Chairman of Investor and Financial Education Council (2017-
2018), the Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors (2009-2014), a
member of Financial Reporting Council (2015-2018), a convenor-cum-member
of Financial Reporting Review Panel (2013-2016), a member of Standing
Committee on Company Law Reform (2010-2016), a member of Main Board
and GEM Listing Committees of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(2007-2013) and a member of Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (2006-2008).

Dr Wong holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Andrews
University in Michigan, USA, and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Members

&
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Mr Roger Best, JP (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

MG E - KF A (H2019-10-013#E + IREHEHA
1 722021-09-30/E 5 )

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former President
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). He has
chaired the HKICPA Financial Reporting Standards Committee and has also
been a member of the International Financial Reporting Standards Advisory
Council.
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Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (from 2014-12-01; current appointment
expires on 2020-09-30)

Mr Chan is a Senior Advisor of The Bank of East Asia and CVC Capital
Partners. He is a veteran banker, with over 30 years of banking experience
covering Hong Kong, Japan, Taiwan and Mainland China. He currently serves
on the boards of various listed companies, NGOs and government statutory
bodies.

Mr Eugene Fung, SC (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on
2021-09-30)

Mr Fung is a barrister in private practice. He is experienced in the fields of
commercial law, trusts and probate, tax, property litigation, and company and
insolvency law. He is also a Recorder of the High Court, the Chairman of the
Banking Review Tribunal and a Deputy Chairman of the Administrative Appeals
Board. He was a member of the Law Reform Commission of Hong Kong from
2012 t0 2018.

Mr Wilson Fung (from 2014-12-01; current appointment expires on 2020-09-
30)

Mr Fung has over 17 years of experience in auditing in Hong Kong and
England, followed by 21 years as a Financial Controller in Jardine Matheson.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA), the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He was
elected as President of the HKICPA in 2010. He was formerly a convenor
to the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporting Council
(2007-2013). Mr Fung is the Founding President of Hong Kong Business
Accountants Association and currently serves on the Boards of several NGOs
and statutory bodies.
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PROFILES OF BOARD MEMBERS (continued)

EERNERE @

Mr Stephen Hung (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

HEE 5 % 4 (B 2018-12-01#8 + BT HEAHE R 2021-
09-30/& )

Mr Hung is the Past President and a current member of the Council of the Law
Society of Hong Kong. As a representative of the Law Society, he serves the
Judicial Officers Recommendation Commission. In his own capacity, he serves
on the Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority, the Law Reform
Commission, Sub-committee on Causing or Allowing the Death of a Child, the
Communications Authority, the Professional Services Advancement Support
Scheme Vetting Committee and the Lump Sum Grant Steering Committee.
He is an Adjunct Professor of Law of Hong Kong Shue Yan University, the
Law School of Beijing Normal University and Visiting Professor of the Faculty
of International Law of China University of Political Science and Law in Beijing,
China.

Ms Miranda Kwok (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

fREAREARMEN ER - REEEREME TR
Fg - ERTAEMERR TR TRABNZES
BEERR - BRAVAABHEZRES - M AREL
MEAS D RBREBZRARFZRD - BEERNE
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BRE - B M E R R BRI B R RGBSR
IZBE U ERMNERERNELSZES - L
BB RBEEHE - AL RMBAEER R
R K EBUEAREBER b F BRI -

SR TS 22 + (1 2018-12-01#8 + IR AL HEAHE 74 2021-
09-30/& )

Ms Kwok is the President and Executive Director of China Construction Bank
(Asia). She has been serving the bank for over 34 years. She is Vice-President
of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, member of the EFAC Financial
Infrastructure and Market Development Sub-committee, Hong Kong Export
Credit Insurance Corporation Advisory Board as well as the Air Transport
Licensing Authority.

Ms Rosita Lee (from 2018-12-01; current appointment expires on 2021-09-
30)

R BHEERRT(EM BHATRERITE
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Z i 2 + (F2018-12-01#8 : IREF(THAHE A 2021-
09-30/E )

Ms Lee is the Head of Investment Products and Advisory Business of Hang
Seng Bank Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of Hang Seng
Investment Management Limited, a Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Hang Seng Investment Services Limited, a Director of Hang Seng Qianhai
Fund Management Company Limited and a member of China Committee of
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce.

She serves a number of public appointments in Hong Kong, including the
Securities and Futures Commission, The Sir David Trench Fund for Recreation,
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Music and Dance Fund, and the Correctional
Services Children’s Education Trust.

Ms Lee holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree from The University of
Hong Kong, a Master of Science Degree in Global Finance jointly awarded by
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and New York University
STERN Business School and is CFPcm certified.
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Mr Stephen Lee (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-
09-30)

Mr Lee has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management at KPMG in London and Hong Kong. He retired from KPMG
in 2011 as Partner-in-Charge of the Risk Consulting practices of KPMG in
respect of Hong Kong, Mainland China and the Asia Pacific region, and is
currently serving as an Adjunct Associate Professor at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and as Immediate Past President of The Institute of Internal
Auditors Hong Kong. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director at a
number of companies.

He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,
and is an associate member of The Institute of Directors and The Institute of
Internal Auditors.

Dr Lin Yong (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-09-30)

Dr Lin Yong is a senior executive of Haitong Securities, CEO of Haitong
International Holdings, Deputy Chairman and CEO at Haitong International
Securities Group and Chairman of Haitong Bank, S.A. He is also the Deputy
Director of the International Cooperation Strategy Committee of Securities
Association of China, member of Mainland Opportunities Committee of
Financial Services Development Council, Chairman of Chinese Securities
Association of Hong Kong, founding Deputy Chairman of Chinese Financial
Association of Hong Kong, and member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.

Mr Francis Siu (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-09-
30)

Mr Siu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

He graduated from the University of Sheffield UK in 1979. After that, he joined
KPMG Manchester, UK and returned to Hong Kong in 1986 and became a
partner of KPMG Hong Kong in 1993. From 2000 to 2002, he was a senior
partner of KPMG Shanghai Office. From 2002 to March 2010, he was a senior
partner of KPMG Beijing Office and a senior partner of Northern Region,
KPMG China.

He is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong and Singapore and sat on a number of committees
of the accounting profession in China.
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Mr Peter Wan (from 2019-10-01; current appointment expires on 2021-09-
30)

Mr Wan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of practising experience and was a partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers before retirement. He has since been invited to
join the Board of Directors of a number of listed companies as Independent
Non-Executive Director. He currently serves as the Treasurer and Council
Member of the Open University of Hong Kong and has held stewardship
positions in several NGOs and service organisations.

Ms Florence Wong (from 2019-12-06; current appointment expires on 2022-
12-05)

Ms Wong is the Head of Oversight, Policy and Governance of the FRC. She
has been with the FRC for over 10 years. Ms Wong has extensive regulatory
knowledge and experience in financial reporting and auditing. She is a former
member of the Financial Reporting Standards Committee of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). Prior to joining the FRC,
Ms Wong worked at the HKICPA and an international accounting firm. She is
qualified as a certified public accountant and a certified internal auditor.

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (from 2014-12-01; current appointment expires
on 2020-09-30)

Mr Wong was a Non-Executive Director of the Securities and Futures
Commission (2009-2015) and a member of the Listing Committee of the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(1999-2003). He was an audit partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong
Kong before his retirement in June 2005. He has served/is serving as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of several companies listed in Hong
Kong. Mr Wong has also served on advisory committees and statutory bodies
established by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, boards of charities and councils of universities.
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Ms Eirene Yeung (from 2014-06-03; current appointment expires on 2020-
09-30)

Ms Yeung is Executive Committee Member and the Company Secretary of CK
Asset Holdings Limited.

She is also a member of the SFC (HKEC Listing) Committee of the Securities
and Futures Commission, the Advisory Committee on Corruption of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption and the Vice Chairman of the
General Committee of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. She is
a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and a non-practising solicitor of the Senior Courts of England and Wales.
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Committees

The committee structure has been revised in view of the expanded functions.
5 committees are set up to advise the Board on different affairs of the FRC.
Each committee comprises Board Members and Honorary Advisers with a
wide spectrum of expertise. The current members of the committees serve a
term of 2 years from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2021.

Inspection Committee
The Inspection Committee advises the Board on matters concerning the
inspection function.

Terms of reference

To provide advice on the inspection manual (which would cover areas
such as inspection strategy, the inspection process, guidelines for
grading the performance of a firm in an inspection).

To provide advice on the proposed annual inspection plan to be
approved by the Board.

To provide advice, as requested by the Inspection Department, on
inspection findings, grading or follow-up action in individual cases.

To provide advice on the extent of publication of inspection findings on
individual firms (e.g. to the audit committee of the related listed entity, or
to the public), and the contents of any such publication.

To provide advice on the annual inspection activity report of the FRC to
be approved by the Board.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural) of the
performance of the inspection function by selecting sample completed
inspections.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the inspection function as
requested by the Board from time to time.

Chairman
Mr Roger Best, JP

Vice-Chairman
Ms Rosita Lee

Members

Mr Clement Chan, MH

Mr Eugene Fung, SC

Mr Francis Siu

Mr Peter Wan

Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP
Mr Benjamin Rhys

Mr Stephen Wong

Prof Wayne Yu*

Appointed with effect from 11 December 2019
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Investigation and Compliance Committee
The Investigation and Compliance Committee advises the Board on matters
concerning the investigation and enquiry functions.

Terms of reference

To provide advice and guidance on the development of policies,
strategies, guidelines and procedures for the operation of the
investigation and enquiry functions.

To provide advice in setting selection criteria, including areas of focus, for
the financial statements review programme annually.

To provide advice on technical matters relating to accounting, auditing
and professional ethics as identified by staff.

To receive operation report of the Investigation and Compliance
Department, oversee the progress of enquiry, investigations, complaints
and financial statements reviews and provide recommendation on
operational matters.

To perform an annual review (both substantive and procedural review)
of the performance of the complaint and review handling function by
selecting sample completed cases of complaints and reviews which are
closed without further action.

To provide advice on matters in relation to the investigation and enquiry
functions as requested by the Board from time to time.

Chairman
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP

Vice-Chairman
Mr Peter Wan

Members

Mr Chew Fook Aun
Mr Wilson Fung

Ms Wincey Lam
Mr Stephen Lee
Mr Anthony Leung
Ms Ashley Khoo
Mr Jackson Woo
Ms Eirene Yeung
Dr Lin Yong
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Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee

The Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee advises the Board on
matters concerning the FRC’s oversight of the HKICPA’s performance of
specified functions and matters concerning policy research and guidance on
governance issues for stakeholders and beneficiaries concerned with the aim
of enhancing the quality of audit and financial reporting.

Terms of reference

° To advise the Board on the annual plan of the Department of Oversight,
Policy and Governance and oversee the performance of executives to
ensure effective implementation of the approved annual plan.

° To consider and comment upon the report on oversight of HKICPA’s
performance of specified functions (i.e. registration, setting of standards
for ethics and auditing and assurance practices, and setting of
requirements for continuing professional development in relation to
PIE auditors), including recommendations to HKICPA on performance
of specified functions, and advise the Board on the exercise of the
power to issue directions to HKICPA under section 10(1A)(c) of the FRC
Ordinance.

° To provide strategic input and perspective on the current, emerging
and potential issues affecting the quality of financial reporting, audit and
corporate governance for identification and prioritization of research
proposals and other initiatives for promoting the quality of the above
matters.

° To consider and advise on research proposals and other initiatives being
undertaken that are conducive to enhancing the quality of financial
reporting, audit and corporate governance and any resultant publications
and thought leadership projects.

° To perform any other functions as shall be determined by the Board from
time to time.

Chairman
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP

Vice-Chairman
Ms Rosita Lee

Members

Ms Melissa Brown
Mr Michael Cheng
Mr Eugene Fung, SC
Mr Stephen Hung
Mr Stephen Lee

Mr Keith Lui

Mr Francis Siu

Mr Paul Smith*

Ms Nancy Tse, JP
Ms Florence Wong (Acting CEQ)

* Appointed with effect from 5 February 2020
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Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee

The Finance and Corporate Affairs Committee advises the Board on finance,
budgeting, corporate communications, administration and other corporate
matters of the FRC.

Terms of reference

e  To advise, review and make recommendations on the development of
policies and procedures relating to Finance, Administration, Information
Technology and Corporate Communications matters.

To review policies and procedures to ensure effective financial and
internal controls.

To review annual financial statements and audit findings, and oversee the
implementation of the audit recommendations.

To review and make recommendations to the Board on the draft
annual budget and forecast, including review and monitor the actual
performance against budget.

To advise, review and make recommendations on treasury management
and related performance.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the financial
sustainability of the FRC, including the levels of levy and various fees.

To advise on matters in relation to capital expenditure.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the Information
Technology strategic plans and oversee the execution of the plans.

To formulate strategies on external communications and promotion of
public awareness of the FRC.

To exercise an oversight on the effective implementation of the
communications and public promotion strategies.

e To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.

Chairman
Mr Wilson Fung

Vice-chairman
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP

Members

Dr Eva Chan

Mr Stephen Hung
Ms Miranda Kwok
Ms Wincey Lam
Ms Rosita Lee

Dr Lin Yong

Mr Keith Pogson
Mr David Stannard
Mr Richard Tsang
Ms Florence Wong (Acting CEQ)
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Compensation and Nomination Committee

The Compensation and Nomination Committee advises the Board on
all human resources related matters and nominations to be made or
recommended by the FRC.

Terms of reference

To advise, review and make recommendations on human resources
policies, procedures and related issues.

To advise, review and make recommendations on the terms and
conditions of employment for staff, including the structure and level of
staff remuneration.

To advise, review and make recommendations on remuneration
packages to ensure competitiveness with the market.

To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration and
reappointment (if applicable) of management staff (CEO, Deputy CEO,
Executive Directors, Heads of Department and General Counsel).

To nominate members for committees or panels set up by the Board
and make recommendations of members for panels set up by the

Government that are relevant for the FRC.

To consider any matters as requested by the Board from time to time.

Chairman
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP

Vice-chairman
Ms Eirene Yeung

Members

Mr Roger Best, JP

Ms Miranda Kwok

Mr Francis Mok

Ms Florence Wong (Acting CEQO)
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Organisation Structure
RS

Legal Department CEO Executive Committee*
ERH THEE YIZER

Oversight,
Policy and
Inspection Discipline Governance
Department Department Department
=g 2l REEDH BB B
EEJE EIB 5= 3/ 3]
KERH

Finance and
Administration
Department

AR5 R AT AR

Investigation
and Compliance

The Executive Committee comprises CEO, Heads of Departments and General Counsel.
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Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), appointed by the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR), leads the staff to manage
the operations of the FRC to ensure that the organisation’s statutory functions
are performed effectively.

Departments
The operations of the FRC are carried out by different departments with clear
segregation of responsibilities.

Inspection Department

The Department of Inspection is responsible for carrying out inspections with
the objectives of monitoring and promoting audit quality. An inspection focuses
on how a PIE auditor conducted PIE engagements and on the effectiveness
of the PIE auditor’s quality control system to determine whether the applicable
professional standards and legal and regulatory requirements have been
complied with.

Investigation and Compliance Department

The Department of Investigation and Compliance is responsible for carrying
out the investigation and enquiry functions of the FRC. It may initiate an
investigation and/or enquiry based on complaints from the public, referrals
from other regulators, the FRC’s own financial statements review programme
or internal referrals arising from inspections of PIE auditors.

Discipline Department

The Department of Discipline is responsible for carrying out the disciplinary
function of the FRC. It will take firm and appropriate action in cases of
misconduct by applying commensurate sanctions for the purposes of
deterrence, investor protection, maintaining market confidence in the audit
quality of listed entities and upholding the standards of conduct among PIE
auditors and registered responsible persons.

Oversight, Policy and Governance Department

The Department of Oversight, Policy and Governance is responsible for
overseeing the performance of the HKICPA in respect of their functions of
registration, setting of standards for ethics and auditing and assurance, and
setting of requirements for continuing professional development in relation
to PIE auditors, and for recognising non-Hong Kong auditors who intend to
undertake and/or carry out any PIE engagement for overseas entities. The
Department will also conduct policy research that is conducive to enhancing
the quality of financial reporting and audit quality, and publish guidance on
governance and other issues where appropriate.

Finance and Administration Department

The Department of Finance and Administration is responsible for managing
matters in relation to finance, budget, human resources, corporate
communication and general administration of the FRC.
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DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

BIITHRABARERS

As mentioned in the Chairman’s Statement, 2019 is a rewarding year for
the FRC. Thanks to the visionary leadership of our former Council and the
concerted efforts of the management team and our staff, we have been able
to fulfil many important missions critical for our smooth transition to the new
auditor regulatory regime amidst our investigations.

Smooth transition to the new regime

Under the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 (the
Amendment Ordinance) effective on 1 October 2019, we are vested with
the powers of inspection, investigation, recognition of overseas auditors of
public interest entities (PIEs) and discipline concerning PIE auditors. We are
also empowered to have an oversight on the performance of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) for functions in relation to
PIE auditors including registration, setting of standards on professional ethics,
auditing and assurance; and setting of continuing professional development
requirements.

In view of the above-mentioned statutory functions, the management team
has worked closely with the Chairman and Council members to ensure that
the strategies set for the smooth transition to the new regime were effectively
executed. First, we have established new governance and organisation
structures, which were designed to achieve proper check and balance while
further enhancing the operational effectiveness and efficiency. Specifically,
the FRC is governed by the Board under the Amendment Ordinance, the
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ultimate governing body, under which 5 committees have been set up, namely
the Inspection Committee, the Investigation and Compliance Committee, the
Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee, the Finance and Corporate
Affairs Committee and the Compensation and Nomination Committee. These
committees, comprising Board Members and Honorary Advisers with a wide
spectrum of expertise, provide invaluable advice on different affairs to the FRC.

The FRC values staff as the most treasurable asset of the organisation. As
mentioned by the Chairman in his statement, we have commissioned an
external consultancy firm to carry out a study on the remuneration and benefits
structure of the FRC. The findings and recommendations resulted from the
study have been carefully considered to draw up a remuneration and benefits
structure conducive to the recruitment and retention of competent and
passionate staff.

Concurrently, we have launched a phased recruitment programme to cater for
our increasing workload and changing operational needs. We are pleased to
report that many senior positions for the new functions have already been filled
by highly qualified and competent professionals. Our recruitment exercise will
go on.

For any regulatory system to be effective, it is important for our stakeholders
to understand the underpinning philosophy and implementation mechanism
of the relevant rules and regulations. To this end, the FRC has set up clear
policies and guidelines in respect of our various functions. In the process,
we proactively engaged our stakeholders. For instance, we conducted a
consultation from 13 March to 17 April 2019 on the proposed sanctions
guidelines in which 2 briefings and 15 meetings with audit firms and
professional bodies were arranged. We explained the policies and guidelines in
details, clarified doubts and alleviated concemns of our stakeholders. The views
and comments collected from the consultation had been carefully reviewed
and considered, resulting in constructive revision of some of the guidelines.
| am pleased to note that all these efforts have been welcomed by the audit
profession. This proves the value of active listening and sincere dialogue.

2019 operations

During the reporting period from 1 January to 30 September 2019, we
received a total of 55 complaints in which, after our assessment, 48 were
pursuable. Of the pursuable complaints, 71% came from the public and 29%
were referred to the FRC from other regulatory bodies.

Despite the hectic preparation for the new regime, we managed to complete
12 investigations and 3 enquiries during the nine-month period, similar to the
numbers for the same period in 2018. Further discussion and analysis of our
operations can be found in the “Management and Operations Review” section
on pages 46 to 59 of this annual report.
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BT FTRE @

Two briefings for audit firms that audit public listed entities on the proposed sanctions guidelines were held on 3 April and 9 April 2019.
M20195F4 ABA KAA9RE » SEFEBE D IESI AE LT BN S A EHIRITRMAMRE -

Opening new pages in regulatory cooperation
Externally, the FRC continued to foster relationship with local, Mainland and
international regulators in 2019. Domestically, we worked seamlessly with
other financial regulators and professional bodies including the Securities and
Futures Commission, the Hong Kong Stock Exchanges and Clearing Limited
and the HKICPA through regular liaison meetings, cross-referrals and sharing
knowledge and information of common interest.

Our efforts in promoting cross-boundary auditor regulatory collaboration came
to fruition as we signed a Memorandum of Understanding (the MOU) with the
Supervision and Evaluation Bureau of the PRC’s Ministry of Finance on 22
May 2019. The MOU facilitates our access to audit working papers located in
the Mainland through an effective mechanism and clear procedures, thereby
enhancing our effectiveness in discharging our duties in respect of inspection
and investigation as an independent auditor regulator.

Under the new regime, the FRC has the statutory function of oversight of the
HKICPA’s performance in delivering its responsibilities of registration, setting
continuing professional development requirements, and setting standards
on professional ethics, auditing and assurance in relation to PIE auditors. To
ensure effective oversight, a Statement of Protocol on Oversight Arrangements
(the Statement of Protocol) with the HKICPA was signed on 27 September
2019, signifying a new page of collaboration between the two parties.

Enhancing international relation and collaboration
Riding on the successful experience in the past, we continued to solidify our
relationship with international regulators and professional bodies in 2019
through meetings and activities. From 27 to 30 March 2019, we took part in
the Regional IFRS Workshop for Regulators in Bangkok, Thailand whereby
we had an in-depth discussion on the implementation and practical issues
of IFRSs with other workshop participants. We also gave a presentation on
the latest development of the FRC at the 7th ASEAN Audit Regulators Group
(AARG) Inspection Workshop on 2 April in Singapore.
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From 30 April to 2 May 2019, the FRC had the privilege of being invited
as an observer to attend the Plenary Meeting of the International Forum of
Independent Audit Regulators (IFIAR) held in Rhodes, Greece. The meeting
provided us with an invaluable opportunity to build ties with IFIAR’s members
and understand more about the application procedures in relation to becoming
an IFIAR member.

We also met with representatives from the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board and the International Valuation Standards Council to discuss
issues related to international best practice and standard-setting and brief
them on our latest development.

The above initiatives are not simply about public relation. They are also
the springboard for the FRC and Hong Kong to benchmark Hong Kong’s
audit practice against international standards and share valuable regulatory
experience and findings with financial regulators worldwide. Most important
of all, we will be able to contribute our part in enhancing audit quality and
regulatory standards globally.

The FRC met with Sir David Tweedie (centre), Chair, International Valuation Standards Council
(IVSC) Board of Trustees and Mr Nick Tablot (2nd from right), CEO of IVSC on 26 September
2019.

75 IE R /BP201959 A 26 H MBI EXRRIZ B & (VSC)XFEAEF G E/EDavid Tweedie
B+ (H) RIVSCITE#EENick Tablotst 4 (A =) & »

Vote of thanks

| would like to express my gratitude to the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau, Board Members, former Council Members, the Honorary Advisory
Panel, and all other stakeholders of the FRC for their valuable insights,
professional expertise and significant contribution. My sincere thanks also
go to our staff who are unafraid of any daunting challenge and carry out
their duties passionately and professionally all the time. With their continued
support, the FRC is well-poised and fully confident to go forward and upward.
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Ms Wincey Lam, Deputy CEO with other workshop
participants at the 7th ASEAN Audit Regulators Group (AARG)
Inspection Workshop on 2 April 2019 in Singapore.
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Deputy Chief Executive Officer
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R— . ' | | { Chairman /&
‘ 1 Dr Kelvin Wong, JP
‘ ! |ARGIEL - K4+
‘ Members K&
‘ 2 Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP
BRFINSEA - SHEFEE - KTFét

Financial | 3 Mr Wilson Fung
Repor’nng Counci =% HE .
: y ‘o~ ) ' N 4 Mr Eugene Fung, SC

ISEEIR S A - BIRKEERD
5 Mr Stephen Hung
RRE(ERA
6 Ms Miranda Kwok
BIF L+
7 Ms Rosita Lee
2 3 2+
8 Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP
BRERELL  WEFESE - KP4
9 Ms Eirene Yeung (Acting Chairman)
HiRE L (BERERE)
10 Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio)
BRI KL (EAKE)
11 Ms Wincey Lam (ex-officio) (Acting CEO)
MEELL(EARKE)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
HEER

Governance Structure (during the period ended 30 September 2019)

BB (MEE2019F9A30H HiR)
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Financial
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Z88

The mission of the FRC is to uphold the quality of financial reporting of listed
entities in Hong Kong by exercising its statutory powers under the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance (FRCO).

The FRC is committed to high standards of corporate governance and
operates within a comprehensive framework of values and guidelines that
emphasises integrity, proficiency, independence and impartiality, accountability
and transparency. To facilitate effective operations and management of
the organisation, the FRC has adopted the best practices outlined by the
International Federation of Accountants and has in place a clearly defined
governing structure, high standards of conduct, reliable internal control
procedures and appropriate checks and balances.
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The Council

Prior to the commencement of the new auditor regulatory regime (i.e. before
1 October 2019), the FRC was governed by its Members, who operated
as a Council. A majority of Council Members, including the Chairman, were
lay persons, i.e., non-accountants. All members were independent of the
audit profession. This ensured the Council’s independence in carrying out its
functions.

The primary functions of the Council were set out in the FRCO and included:

i. reviewing complaints concerning non-compliance with accounting
requirements by listed entities as well as complaints concerning auditing
or reporting irregularities by auditors of listed entities;

i.  making enquiries into non-compliance and investigating auditing or
reporting irregularities; and

ii. approving and overseeing the policies and activities of boards and
committees established by the Council.

The FRC’s Chief Executive Officer (CEO) was appointed by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (HKSAR) on
the recommendation of the Council. As at 30 September 2019, there were
11 Members on the Council. Three of these 11 members were nominated
by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEX), the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Securities and
Futures Commission (SFC) respectively. The Registrar of Companies or her
representative and the FRC’s CEO were ex-officio members.

Council members were appointed for a two-year term which was renewable.
Procedures were in place to ensure adequate rotation of members on an
annual basis.

Council members came from a variety of backgrounds with diversified
and relevant skills which included accountants, lawyers and members
with extensive business experience. While there was no ruling on gender
diversification, five of the eleven members were female. Not only did Council
members attend meetings of the Council, but each member was involved in
at least one of the underlying committees, thus ensuring they were involved
extensively in the affairs of the Council.

Members of the Council were legally bound to declare any interests they might
have in a case. Council Members present during deliberations or decision
making by HKEX, the HKICPA or the SFC relating to cases to be referred to
the FRC were considered as having an interest in that case. In accordance
with the FRCO, Council Members having such an interest might not (a) be
present during any deliberation by the Council, (b) take part in any decision of
the Council, or (c) be given any documents related to the case.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
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The CEO and his staff managed the operations of the FRC, reporting to
Council in accordance with the provisions of the procedural manual. Council,
in turn, gave directives to the CEO and FRC staff and ensured that the
organisation’s statutory functions were being performed effectively. The roles
of Chairman and CEO were separate and distinct.

Council Meetings

The Council met once every two months and held additional meetings as and
when necessary. In addition to discussing specific agenda items, progress
reports on all ongoing cases, management accounts and other operating
statistics were submitted for review at each regular meeting. During the nine-
month period ended 30 September 2019, the Council held five meetings, all of
which were conducted in accordance with the provisions of the FRCO.
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Membership and attendance at Council meetings during the nine-month & Z201949 A30H M NLE A BR - MiSERBEN S
period ended 30 September 2019, was as follows: HHER B REERNT ¢
Meetings attended/held
SREEBTRY
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP wmAREL - KM 5/5
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP FBRFBUTAE - IRKHIZ2E - KL 4/5
Mr Eugene Fung, SC IBEENE S - BIRAERD 4/5
Mr Wilson Fung ISIE S AE 4/5
Mr Stephen Hung RRIB(EE 5/5
Ms Miranda Kwok IS 22+ 4/5
Ms Rosita Lee Mzt 5/5
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP ERREE - EFIEE - KP4t 5/5
Ms Eirene Yeung et 4/5
Ms Ada Chung, JP (ex-officio) EEe LT KA (EAKE) 5/5
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann' (CEO) (ex-officio) BRER A (1THRAAE) (BARKE) 2/2
Ms Wincey Lam? (Acting CEO) (ex-officio) MBEEL T (BIBITHAR) (EARKE) 3/3
The average attendance rate at meetings was 92%. FETHAEREER2 -
1 Term expired on 31 March 2019. ! E#IRR20194F3 A31 B g

2 Appointed as Acting CEO with effect from 1 April 2019.
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Pursuant to the FRCO, the Chief Executive of the HKSAR might appoint
temporary members to the FRC to serve on a rotating basis with respect to
cases whereby the Council was not able to meet the statutory quorum in
relation to matters in which members had disclosed their interests. During
2019, the following persons were the temporary members of the FRC:

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
Mr Michael Scales
Ms Anna Wong

The in-house General Counsel attended all Council meetings and had been
appointed as the Secretary of the meetings. Minutes of meetings were
circulated to the Chairman for review and comment and then to all members
for comment. All members had access to the General Counsel.

Council Committees

The Council had five committees, the responsibilities of which are described
below. These committees met as necessary on a periodic basis. Each
committee operated according to its own terms of reference. Information on
the number of meetings held and attendance rates are set out in the tables
below.

Each committee had a majority of Council members and at least one
Honorary Adviser to ensure appropriate checks and balances across the
operations of the FRC. The Operations Oversight Committee also had other
members comprising lay persons, together with those with accounting and
auditing experience. Where authority could be delegated under the FRCO,
each committee was accountable to the Council for its decisions. Where
delegation was not permissible, each committee was accountable for its
recommendations to Council.

The terms of reference of each committee were reviewed from time to time in
light of working needs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
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Corporate Communications Committee (CCC)

Terms of reference

To formulate corporate communications policies and strategies to increase
publicity about the work of the FRC.

To oversee the implementation of corporate communications strategies
approved by the Council, and to utilise appropriate communications tools,
such as press statements, publications, electronic communications, and
conferences, to reach the media and external parties.

To recommend an annual promotion plan and budget to the Council.

To oversee the review and updating of FRC website layouts and contents,
printed brochures, promotional materials and other publications of the FRC.
To oversee publicity campaigns launched from time to time by the FRC.

To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Membership and attendance at CCC meetings during the nine-month period
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ended 30 September 2019, was as follows: ENEZLERERLEFUT -
Meetings attended/held
BRHE T BTRE
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP (Chairman) FBRFBULAE - IERFEE « KR (ERE) 3/3
Mr Clement Chan PBREREL e 2/3
Ms Ada Chung, JP EEBRLT - A4t 3/3
Mr Eugene Fung, SC ISEERESRE + BIRAZERD 11
Ms Rosita Lee Z{m <+ 3/3
Mr Keith Pogson BylitE 2/3
Mr Michael Scales Nt 2/3
Mr Sin Chung Kai, SBS, JP B seL - REFEE - KP4t 3/3
Ms Eirene Yeung? ke w2 2/2
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann? (CEO) (ex-officio) EEREAES(TTHARE) (BEAKE) 11
Ms Wincey Lam¢ (Acting CEO) (ex-officio) MFEELZTH(BRITHRE) (EAKE) 2/2
Average attendance rate 91% T FEEI1%
Appointed with effect from 1 August 2019. H2019F8 A1 AR -

N

Resigned with effect from 30 June 2019.
Term expired on 31 March 2019.
Appointed with effect from 1 April 2019.
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Finance Committee (FC) MKEER

Terms of reference

To review the FRC’s treasury, internal control, and financial and risk
management policies and strategies.

To approve tenders for procurement with an estimated value exceeding
HK$500,000 (other than legal services relating to the vetting of investigation
or enquiry reports).

To advise the FRC on the short, medium and long term financial implications
of the Council’s strategic plans.

To review and make recommendations to the FRC on the Council’s annual
budget.

To review the FRC’s draft annual financial statements before submission to
the Council.

To provide advice on the future funding model of the FRC once the
independent audit oversight reform proposal is finalised.

To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Membership and attendance at FC meetings during the nine-month period

s
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ended 30 September 2019, was as follows: EBELERERLAEFRUT -

Meetings attended/held

BRHEBTRE

Mr Wilson Fung (Chairman) BRI E(EFE) 3/3
Mr Roger Best, JP BOMRE A - K4t 2/3
Mr Stephen Hung ARB(SEAE 2/3
Dr PM Kam HEXEL 11
Ms Miranda Kwok EISTh e 1/3
Mr David Stannard MR A 3/3
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann' (CEO) (ex-officio) FEREE (TTHRBE) (EAKE) 11
Ms Wincey Lam? (Acting CEO) (ex-officio) MBEELZ T EETHRRH) (BEAKE) 2/2
Average attendance rate 83% T EE83%
1 Term expired on 31 March 2019. i EEARA2019E3 A31 H & °
2 Appointed with effect from 1 April 2019. 2 MR2019F4 1B EZR(E -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
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Independent Audit Oversight Reform Committee (IAORC)

Terms of reference

To provide advice to the FRC and the staff on matters related to the reform
of auditor oversight systems in Hong Kong (the Reform), including but not
limited to the registration, inspection, investigation and sanction of auditors.
To oversee the work of FRC staff in relation to the Reform, including but
not limited to the assumption of statutory powers for the inspection of
listed company auditors and the transition arrangements relating to audit
inspection and related legislative amendments; and to ensure that the
activities undertaken by the staff are in accordance with the directives of the
Council and the agreed timeline.

To receive and consider regular progress reports from the staff on the
progress of the Reform.

To undertake specific tasks related to the Reform as required by the
Council.

To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Membership and attendance at IAORC meetings during the nine-month period

ended 30 September 2019, was as follows:

BYEEENERES
BEwEE

RERBAEEHENE(ZHE)EE 2
FBETRNZBENEN B2 BAERE
o ARBEREETRHEER -
EBARNEIHRZNEMBETOHIE 2
BETRNEEER LA BREBENHETE
BiEE B EENBERH KA EE
7 WAMRE TEERARBKEHESIMZE
FEHIBFRIFAETT I ©

BEW R ESE TR R RN E S
E3E -

BRARKBHER - TR EENIE
ETIE -

AR B NEERTENEEMELIRTE -

B F2019F9H30HBINLE A A » BV HANEE
KREZEHEZLEHEREERMT :
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Meetings attended/held
BRHE S BTRE
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman) BRBEBL - KFEHLT 3/3
Mr Clement Chan PREREE T 3/3
Mr Chew Fook Aun BAEZhE 2/3
Ms Ada Chung, JP BB T - K4t 3/3
Mr Eugene Fung, SC SRR - BIRAERD 3/3
Mr David Stannard RS 3/3
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP |RERSE  WEFAEE - KTt 2/3
Ms Wincey Lam' (Acting CEO) (ex-officio) MFEELZ LT (BIBITHRE) (EAKE) 3/3
Average attendance rate 92% I HE %E92%
1 Appointed with effect from 1 April 2019. 1 R2019F4 A1 AR -
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Operations Oversight Committee (OOC)

Terms of reference

To formulate policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures for the
operation of the FRC.

To provide advice to the FRC and its operational staff on technical and
business issues.

To consider the progress of enquiries, investigations, complaints and
reviews currently being dealt with by staff.

To consider enquiry reports approved by the Financial Reporting Review
Committees before submission to the Council.

To consider investigation reports approved by the Audit Investigation Board
before submission to the Council.

To consider recommendations in the complaint/review assessment reports
before submission to the Council, and to endorse those complaint/review
assessment reports requiring no follow-up action.

To consider and approve recommendations made in the review handling
reports in relation to financial statements selected for review under the
financial statements review programme.

To decide on matters which the Council delegates from time to time.

Membership and attendance at OOC meetings during the nine-month period

BIEEREZEE
BEwEE

HEARRHEERE - 58S - 55| FIRFF ©

RZARRAITEERE R B TR R

EEERER
EREIHREENSH - #E  RARE
B TR -

BELUYBERRT ZESHENS AR
& URRARBKEEE -
ERKEHERESHENAETRS - K
RIANBREEE

BRRF RN ERE AR RS - AR
RARKEEE - EHERZRIRETS
R ER, BBIRTEIRS o

B AR R TS R R B AT BB M M TS R
EVERBIR IR IR E AR

HABKE TR EEMELIRE

EUE20194F9H30H #9116 BRI fE] - EFESRZS

ended 30 September 2019, was as follows: BHEZELEASRLEFMAT -
Meetings attended/held
SRR BIRE
Mr Wong Kai Man, BBS, JP (Chairman) ERIRSEE  ERFEE - K (EF) 4/5
Mr Jamie Allen’ MRS A 2/3
Mr Chan Tze Ching, BBS, JP BRFIERSEAE - HEFIRE - KP4t 3/6
Ms Wilson Fung RIS E 5/5
Mr Stephen Hung RRE(S ST E 4/5
Ms Rosita Lee EX T E e 3/5
Mr Anthony Leung B/ NRE 5/5
Mr Kenneth Morrison? Mg (s E 1/3
Mr Stephen Taylor Stephen Taylorst 4 5/5
Ms Eirene Yeung BgRe L 4/5
Mr Andy Wong =R A 2/2
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann? (CEO) (ex-officio) AR E2(FTEAREL) (B ARKE) 2/2
Ms Wincey Lamé (Acting CEO) (ex-officio) MEE LT BETRARE) (EAKE) 3/3

Average attendance rate 82%

Term expired on 31 May 2019.
Term expired on 31 March 2019.
Appointed with effect from 1 April 2019.

THHEEE2%

3

EHR2019F5A31 HEim °
EHARA201953 A31 BEM °
R2019F4 A1 BEERLT -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
EEERm@m

Remuneration Committee (RC) FMEER

Terms of reference BEHE
e To formulate remuneration policies, strategies, guidelines and procedures o RIBFAAREAFERESHTE © sIEB@R
for the operation of the FRC in accordance with all applicable legal and REEMF R « RIS « 83| FIRF -

regulatory requirements.
e  To make recommendations to the FRC on staffing, remuneration and e WMERMEIIEE - ZiM EEAKREKEERE

employment policies and strategies including salary structure, terms and HABIEHMEE BERERRGHEMET
conditions of employment, and staff fringe benefits. & - AR EREER -

e To make recommendations on the annual pay adjustment and the amount o 2 ERERIE THEE HBAZN T E) &
of variable compensation payable to individual staff members. MeEER -

e To make recommendations on the amount of variable compensation o I2HAEBTBEHN IS ENES, o
payable to the CEO.

e To decide on matters which may be delegated by the Council from time to o  FABE TEEEHNEEHIELIRE ©
time.

Membership and attendance at RC meetings during the nine-month period & Z2019%F9430H #9116 FHifE - FBZES EH)

ended 30 September 2019, was as follows: BELEAERLERUT -

Meetings attended/held

BRHE T BTRE
Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (Chairman) BAMEL - K (ERF) 4/4
Mr Roger Best, JP MR A - K Fat 4/4
Ms Miranda Kwok ZPIF 2+ 3/4
Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith? ERIKBASE A 11
Ms Eirene Yeung 1HiRe 2+ 3/4
Mr Paul F. Winkelmann? (CEO) (ex-officio) B R A 2(1THAR) (BEAKE) 11
Ms Wincey Lam? (Acting CEO) (ex-officio) MEELZ T EIRTHEAR) (BEAKE) 3/3
Average attendance rate 93% T FE#R93%
1 Resigned with effect from 15 March 2019. 1 H2019F3 A 15 A BHE °
2 Term expired on 31 March 2019. 2 EERR201953 A31 BIEi ©
3 Appointed with effect from 1 April 2019. 3 R2019F4 A1 AERLE -
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Operations

Enquiry — Financial Reporting Review Panel and Committee

In cases where the FRC believed there might be non-compliance with
accounting requirements by a listed entity, the Council might appoint a
Financial Reporting Review Committee (FRRC) to conduct an enquiry. The
committee consisted of a Panel Convenor as Chairman and at least four other
members of the Financial Reporting Review Panel (FRRP).

Under the powers vested in it under section 43 of the FRCO, the FRRC may
require relevant persons to produce records and documents and provide
information and explanations for the purpose of an enquiry.

Members of the FRRP were appointed by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR
in consultation with the Council. As at 30 September 2019, the FRRP had
45 members, including 9 Convenors. They were appointed based on their
experience in accounting, auditing, finance, banking, law, administration,
or management. A list of FRRP members can be found in the section
“Membership of Board and Panels” of this annual report.

During the reporting period, the FRC dealt with 3 enquiry cases brought
forward from previous years and 1 case initiated during the period. 3 enquiry
cases were completed.

Investigation — Audit Investigation Board (AIB)

The Council might direct the AIB to conduct investigations into possible
auditing or reporting irregularities by auditors of listed entities. Under the
powers vested in it under sections 25, 26, 27 and 28 of the FRCO, the AIB
may require relevant persons to produce records and documents, supply
information and provide explanations for the purpose of the investigation.

The CEO of the FRC was the ex-officio Chairman of the AIB. Other members
of the AIB, who were normally staff members of the FRC, were appointed by
the Council. A list of AIB members can be found in the section “Membership
of Board and Panels” of this annual report.

During the reporting period, the AIB dealt with 43 investigation cases brought
forward from previous years and 11 cases initiated during the period. It
completed 12 investigation cases.

1

EM-MBESRRNZEEREES

if R PR AE LR A AT & HRE R
£ ABKEAEE—ERBERRTE S RM
B - BHEFRRNEEGRE B BERRNE
BEBEABEELRE - AREDNEREMBERR
HZEBEMNEMRKE -

-

ISHE e ] & B & AIRB BT IS IE B 1R 01 )5E 4315
FREE T E0HES] - ERBBA TR RS - 274
BRI ERE - LUETTEMIE -

MBERBNZERKEBEBFINTREITERE
FHEAARBDERT - 201959 A30H » BIFIE Hin
HEZEBEAFISEHE ERPNBABEA - KEY
HMREE - F|at - - RIT A2 THRUER
CERTMERT - MEERBTZEERBHZEFHN
NERIZEGREZEEKE 50 -

MEER DN ERAARIZIRNIBEFERMNE
AEZREI RN IARFANEREZR - LK REA
(EESE

BE-BBEEER
ARERETHEZ B SR B MZBEIA S £
MEBNELERTENNETRERASZ - #Eaf
HEZ B A REKMTBERBIEPI)NF25 - 26 - 27
R 28IGFIIE TS - BERBBALHREHMX
- RECER R - UEITRE T -

MBERDITHRAHRTEAALZEENERTR
MEHAEZEENEMKEBANBKERT &
FRARET - B ABZ RN ENBEHNASE
WEZEGNEZEEKE |-

B AEZEeRERPRNEENBEFENERE
P43 RERULRAHEANRANIIRER WK T
12RAEEE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
BT R @)

Internal Controls

The FRC maintains an effective internal control system that includes a
clear organisational structure, well-defined levels of authority, and proper
segregation of duties. The FRC assigns a director to take charge of each case
from the moment investigations/enquiries commence.

The FRC regularly reviews all its policies and guidelines relating to personnel
administration, procurement, authorisation of transactions, and the
safeguarding of its assets.

Specific forms were completed by Council members, committee members
and staff in respect of each case to ensure conflicts had been declared and
identified. Once declared, all papers issued reflected any such conflicts.

Code of Conduct

FRC staff members are required to adhere to our code of conduct when
carrying out any role on behalf of the FRC. Our code of conduct specifies
standards to be followed in areas that may involve conflicts of interest,
confidentiality of information, personal investments and data protection. This
includes the need for staff members to make regular declarations of their own
and their spouse’s investments, and to notify any changes in their portfolio.

The FRC’s code of conduct is reviewed and updated on a regular basis
to ensure that it remains consistent with the best practices currently being
applied across the areas in which the FRC operates.

Communications with Stakeholders

The FRC actively communicates with stakeholders, including its funding
parties, the accounting and auditing profession, its regulatory counterparts,
and the general investing public.

The FRC publishes annual reports and eNews to keep the public informed
about the progress of its work and its development. Operations statistics
and press releases about completed cases are regularly posted on the FRC
website (www.frc.org.hk) to provide the public with a user-friendly way to
search for updated information.

The FRC has also set up official pages on certain social media channels
to enable interested parties to connect with the FRC in a more interactive
manner.
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Checks and Balances

Accountability and Audit

The FRC has adopted a strict audit process. The FRC’s annual budget must
be endorsed by the Council. The Secretary for Financial Services and the
Treasury then reviews and approves the FRC’s annual estimates of income
and expenditure.

The financial statements of the FRC are audited by the Government’s Director
of Audit; annual reports are submitted to the Secretary for Financial Services
and the Treasury and tabled at the Legislative Council. The FRC attends a
meeting of the Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs and presents a
progress report annually.

Process Review Panel (PRP)

The FRC has its work scrutinised by a PRP, the aim of which is to ensure that
individual cases have been dealt with consistently, and that all actions and
decisions taken are in line with internal procedures and guidelines. The PRP
issues an annual report containing the conclusions of its review, together with
suggestions for improvements, if any. Appointments to the PRP are approved
by the Chief Executive of the HKSAR.

Ombudsman

The Ombudsman also indirectly oversees the work of the FRC by dealing with
any public complaints regarding alleged maladministration made against the
FRC and its staff. The FRC did not receive any enquiries from the Ombudsman
in 2019.

Best Practice

While the FRC is not obliged to comply with any particular corporate
governance codes, it voluntarily complies with various principles and code
provisions where considered relevant.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW
BEKREFEIRE

Key Operations Statistics FEEFHIE

As the Financial Reporting Council (Amendment) Ordinance took effect on (B FEEE R fm (85T ) IEHIYR2019F10 A1 B AR - 12
1 October 2019, marking the commencement of the new auditor regulatory — sEEFZSEIESE HIE MRS - ALt - AKERBN
regime, the cut-off date of the key operations statistics of the FRC in 2019 was 20194 &)+ E & EE3E LA2019F9 A30H A& LE A
30 September 2019. The statistics presented for 2019 in this section covers a B - AR Z &7 R AI2019FE S ETEUEHE T 20194 1

nine-month period from 1 January to 30 September 2019. A1B#£Z9H30H [LHOfE A #iRT -
Sept/98

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Pursuable complaints received
B AT BRAEIRGER 46* 118* 126* 85* 48
Investigations initiated
H/FANRFAREHEZR 11 18 14 19 11
Investigations completed
TERHAE Y EZR 9 11 11 16 12
Enquiries initiated
H/FENREFAEANESR 1 1 - 2 1
Enquiries completed
T ERBER - 1 - 1 3

* Includes 50, 101, 97 and 22 complaints in 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectively, ~ * BIED BIR20184F ~ 20174 20164 K2015F &

which appear to have come from the same source and were directed at a single audit SR ER—FIFELEEE MM ITH50% - 101
firm. R 9T RR22RIEH o
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Review of Complaints
Every complaint received is carefully evaluated prior to determining whether to
close the case or initiate an investigation and/or an enquiry.

As at 30 September 2019, the FRC received 48 pursuable complaints. Of
these, 1 related to auditing or reporting irregularities and 1 related to non-
compliance with accounting requirements. A further 46 complaints involved
both auditing or reporting irregularities and non-compliance with accounting
requirements.

EBIRER
ARHEBNFEENSRER - WATRTERE
(R BIAE R/ EH -

HZE2019F9A30H + ABHEEAST ] REILEF -
B —REREARERTETE  —RERTE
RETETEFEE - BIMORABFLETHEFTE
TARTERERESH

Sept/9 8

2019 2018
Complaints from: Y=

The Public N 34 68
HKEX ERZFT 10 12
HKICPA BRGNS 3 3

SFC BEE 1
Companies Registry NGIEESi0 0 1
Total 5T 48 85

The FRC handled the 11 complaints brought forward from the previous year,
along with the 48 pursuable complaints received during the period. As at 30
September 2019, 23 complaints were still being evaluated.

The FRC targets to complete its evaluation of complaints within 90 working
days from receipt. At 30 September 2019, this target has substantially been
met.

KBEREREERI1RR E—FEEENREF - U
N ABTRIA R F I R AT IREIEFF - ElZE 20199730
A ABINEER2SREH -

RBE NN EEERFNOEIERN B ZHREAT
AR EREVER) - B E2019F9A308 © HHEEE X
B Em o

Sept/9 8

2019 2018
Brought forward B/ BB ER 11 14
Pursuable complaints received R ] REIREF 48 85
Handled during the period/year B/ R IE R AR 59 99
Completed with no follow-up action B Iea i ER ZRENER (29) (43)
Referred to specified enforcement agencies B FRTINTEENEZR (1) (36)
Initiated investigation and/or enquiry ERAEM/REANEZR (6) ©)
In progress at end of the period/year H/FRINERHPOEZR 23 1
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)
B8 N E/E L BE )

Diagram 1 [&l1 Review of complaints
ERRER
142 140
128 196 99
60
36 36
2015 2016 2017 2018 Sept/9. A
2019
o Handled during the period/year ® Completed during the period/year
B/ AR BR/FE NE BRK
Diagram 2 [&2 Source of pursuable complaints

A R IR R AV SRR

126*
118

85~ B Members of the public
RNENE

Regulators

EERE

46~

80% B Listed entities
e

71%

2015 2016 2017 2018  Sept/9AH

2019
* Includes 50, 101, 97 and 22 complaints in 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 respectively, ~ * BIEDBIR20184F ~ 20174 + 20164 K2015F &
which appear to have come from the same source and were directed at a single audit R B R — ORI R —HE 5 A THI50R ~ 101
firm. R OTRM22FIL ©
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By eliminating the anomalies created in 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018  #ifRE2— AT BREF RV SR P IR 2 R 20154 -
mentioned in diagram 2 on source of pursuable complaints, a different picture 2016 4 + 2017 £ 22018 FEAHEEIHT N » AIR

emerges. IR DB R
Diagram 3 &3 Source of pursuable complaints

A BRI IR R AV SRR

48
36"
25" 26’ B Memb f the publi
71% embers of the public
NRAL
22"
Regulators
EEHE
B Listed entities
EiEee
Y
2015 2016 2017 2018  Sept/9H
2019

*

The 50, 101, 97 and 22 complaints as mentioned in the note to diagram 2 are treated as =~ * B2k e X A50 ~ 101 « 97 M2 RIGFFRIEM B F S
a single complaint in each of the relevant years. AR A1 RILER ©

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL « ANNUAL REPORT 2019 49
MIEERS « 20195 K



MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)
B8 N E/E L BE )

Diagram 4 [El4 Size of accounting firms involved in complaints

WRAREFEETE1T VAR

126

B Big Four accounting firm
PR & ETRIAT

Medium-size accounting firms
(with six or more partners/directors)

HEISEEIIT(BANERA ENEBA/ESR)

B Small-size accounting firms
(with five or less partners/directors)

PNERIESHET(ERERRATHEBA/EE)

2015 2016 2017 2018  Sept/9A
2019

3 complaints involve more than one auditor * = RSP RE R AR

By also eliminating the anomalies created in 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 iR R E2 — 0] R &R A R P IR 2 AR 20154 -
mentioned in diagram 2 on source of pursuable complaints, once again a 20164 « 2017F M2018FEAMEFIBFN + HRE

different picture emerges. FH R TR RN D MBI B
Diagram 5 [E5 Size of accounting firms involved in complaints
W RIZFFRVE AT HRAR
il

36"

B Big Four accounting firms
PR & ETRITT

Medium-size accounting firms (with six or more
partners/directors)

AR T

(BRABSALEMARAEF)

26"

22¢

B Small-size accounting firms (with five or less
partners/directors)
NEREEDIT

(BRASATHEBAEF)

2015 2016 2017 2018 Sept/9A
2019

*

The 50, 101, 97 and 22 complaints as mentioned in the note to diagram 2 are treated as * B2 s 2 A950 ~ 101 ~ 97 22 R I& KA MR ED

a single complaint in each of the relevant years. e A1 SR o
# P h B1R
3 complaints involve more than one auditor M SR B SR R
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Investigations

During the reporting period, the FRC handled 43 investigations brought
forward from 2018 and initiated 11 investigations in 2019. In total, 12
investigations were completed and the investigation reports have been referred
to the HKICPA who will determine whether any disciplinary or other action is
warranted. A summary of the findings from the investigations completed in
2019 can be found on pages 54-59 of this annual report.

During the period, the HKICPA's disciplinary committees took disciplinary
action in response to 7 investigations completed and referred from the FRC
in earlier years. The certified public accountants and practice units involved
in these cases were reprimanded and ordered to pay penalties and costs. In
one case, it was ordered that no practising certificate shall be issued to the
engagement partner for 2 years.

As at 30 September 2019, there were 42 investigations in progress. In 2019,
we continued to focus our effort on finalising the longer outstanding cases
which are complex and involved multiple years’ audits and multiple auditors.
At 30 September 2019, only two cases originated from prior to 2016 were
outstanding which are expected to be completed in the first half of 2020.

The outstanding investigations include those involving audit working papers
located in the Mainland. Further to the signing of the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) with the PRC’s Ministry of Finance (MoF), we have
started dialogue with the MoF to kick off the mechanism in gaining access to
audit working papers under the MoU.

FAE
RBH2019FE RIEA 2018 EBMAMN4E AL
RTRMANTAEER - ARAETRI2FRAEME
R WEBZSATREENEESTMAE - LUR
EREHEETHEMLEZED KEHAITE) - 2019F
TRAAESERERNVFEZSHNARNFRES4-508 ©

ERPA - BERAMAGNLEZEGRARN
REFETKEAELEN N7 RAEEARKIGCERE
7 o REERF MHREG R NN EMHGEER K
HLXMIAFRER - E—REAXRD BHHAEE
ABRBEEMFATGRERERE -

HZ2019F9A30H ' ARBLRHAEMELFT
X > FR2019%F » ARMBEZ INETFRANES
BEEHESIRSFTET RS EBRBMOEHER - B
2019F9A30H @ EFRMTH20162 Al E 4 A
L - BEIBRN2020F ¥ F 5w -

DEREFNERSES RN AR ER TR
T EZE - AREBERF B BB TR - CA
HEETHEDERE - ARBIEGIERE B TR -

Sept/9 52019 2018
In progress at the beginning of the period/year /& F ) EZE 43 40
Initiated in the period/year B/ENREFAEESR 11 19
Handled during the period/year A/ F NER IR EIZR 54 59
Completed B (12) (16)
In progress at end of the period/year H/FRIDEAEPHOEZR 42 43
Diagram 6 &6 . . .
Progress of investigation cases
FEERVER
59 54
48 51
39
16
9 11 1.1/0\1.2
P —
2015 2016 2017 2018 Sept/9 A
2019

o Handled during the period/year
HIFNEE
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)
B8 N E/E L BE )

Key issues and findings in completed investigations = RRAEERNTERER IR

Our investigations identified concerns regarding the application of professional — FH{FIHFAELIR - EIEA B F B MHE EEREIR
scepticism and judgement in challenging management’s financial reporting  B¥ R EEREZIE - AR BEEREERESTE
treatments, fair value measurement and impairment assessment. The findings B ZZF T8 - BN FAEHIRE T 5 EHE
of our investigations related to the follow areas:

52

Diagram 7 [&7
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Impairment assessment (Financial and non-financial assets)
TRI/FESRMEERE
Valuation/Fair value measurement
HE/ AR EETE

Financial instruments

TRMIA

Business combination/goodwill
RS G/EE

Consolidation

aft

Disclosure deficiencies

WETR

Revenue & construction contracts
WARZEER

Share-based payment
IR 5

Capitalisation of expenses

FHERE

Genuineness of expenses

sz Y B REIE

Classification (HKFRS 5, HKAS 16)
2 FE(HKFRS 5, HKAS 16)



Enquiries

The FRC brought forward three enquiries from last year and one enquiry
initiated during the reporting period. Three cases were completed and one
case was in progress at 30 September 2019.

Each enquiry is handled by a Financial Reporting Review Committee with
support from staff of the FRC. The time taken to complete an enquiry depends
on the circumstances and complexity of individual cases.

B

RBEER EFRMDEEMN=REAMESE - RNRH
NEFH—REHEZR - #ZE2019F9A30H + &F
BERK =R - B R ERDNEET -

%ﬁgﬂlﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ“*lii&*ﬁﬁ%é\ﬁ&ﬁi%élfﬁ
BRIE - ST — R EUERMAHRENRRRTERE
BB REREE T E ©

Sept/9 A
2019 2018
In progress at the beginning of the period/year  Bi/F ¥ E A H K EZR 3 2
Initiated in the period/year H/FANRBAEMHEZR 1 2
Handled during the period/year B/ FAREREZR 4 4
Completed EREMAEZR ) Q]
In progress at end of the period/year B/ERIDEEMPHEZR 1 3
Diagram 8 [Ei8 Progress of enquiry cases
BHERER

2015 2016 2017

2018 Sept/9H
2019

o Handled during the period/year ® Completed during the period/year

H/E AR

H/FENE ek
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)
B8 N E/E L BE )

RAREE
20191 A9 EiM » AR T3REMKI12R
HE - U TRATERNFE -

Summary of Cases
During the period from January to September of 2019, we completed 3
enquiries and 12 investigations. A summary of findings is set out below:

SREANETR

BB G R —F L ERBM B IRRORFR - PR
ZEMBHRBDEERARETR - BABAE
& BMERTUTEFRETR

Multiple auditing irregularities

We received complaints on a listed entity’s financial statements in relation to
potential auditing irregularities on a number of financial statement areas. As a
result of our investigation, we identified the following auditing irregularities:

54 |

In relation to the listed entity’s available-for-sale investment, there
were changes in the original terms of the acquisition and the business
model of the investee in response to certain decisions of an overseas
investment authority. The investigation revealed that the auditor failed
to properly plan and perform the audit in relation to the effects of the
changes and the impairment assessment of the available-for-sale
investment. The future cash flows arising from the investment were
substantially based on management estimations and assumptions of
which the auditor failed to question their reasonableness and to obtain
sufficient corroborative evidence. The auditor also failed to identify
that the disclosures relating to the investment in the relevant financial
statements were incorrect and incomplete.

Following the changes of the acquisition terms of the above available-
for-sale investment, certain convertible notes and conversion shares
previously approved by independent shareholders for the original
acquisition were used as consideration for management services to be
provided to the investee in future periods. The investigation found that
the auditor failed to perform procedures in relation to the change in use
of the financial instruments and to assess whether HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment had been properly applied in the relevant financial
statements.

The net asset of the group at the year-end, substantially represented
by the interests in subsidiaries, was significantly less than that of
the company level and the group incurred loss during the year. The
investigation found no evidence that the auditor had performed audit
procedures during the audit in relation to the impairment assessment of
the listed entity’s interests in its subsidiaries.

The investigation also revealed that the auditor failed to alert that
the impairment losses of trade receivables were related to the sales
recognised in the immediate preceding financial year and design and
perform audit procedures to evaluate whether the revenue recognition
in prior year was in compliance with the relevant financial reporting
standard.
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In another investigation, the listed entity retrospectively restated a number £ Z2—FAEH > tHE %;\_/ﬁ)ﬂi§ljp1lﬁ7ﬁ]&#&§lﬁ
of financial statement items. We carried out an investigation into two sets of B - MY EHEERD Agui ENIHRE
prior years’ financial statements of the listed entity and found the following — F%& © IBA TEAKRETA

auditing irregularities:

a. The listed entity proposed to distribute its equity interest in a wholly-
owned subsidiary to its shareholders and the distribution was subject
to certain precedent conditions and independent shareholders’
approval. Despite the conditions and the shareholders’ approval
had not been fulfilled and obtained respectively by the year end. the
listed entity classified the related assets and liabilities as disposal
group held for distribution in the statement of financial position
and presented the related operation in the statement of profit or
loss as discontinued operation. The investigation found that the
auditor relied on management’s representation and failed to obtain
corroborative evidence, and properly consider and identify that the
relevant accounting treatment was a non-compliance with accounting
requirement.

b.  There were significant decline in fair values of certain listed equity
investments which were classified as available-for-sale investment in
accordance with HKAS 39. The listed entity recognised the decline
in fair values in other comprehensive income. The investigation found
that the Auditor failed to properly consider the significant decline in
fair values of the equity investments below their costs which was an
objective evidence of impairment and the cumulative losses should
have been reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

c.  The listed entity recognised the equity component of a convertible note
by deducting the fair value of the liability component from the issue
proceeds rather than from the fair value of the convertible note as a
whole on the issuance date. The listed entity also failed to properly
determine the discount rate in arriving at the fair value of the liability
component of the convertible note. The auditor failed to perform
adequate audit procedures to evaluate the work of the valuer, assess
the appropriateness of the discount rate adopted and identify that the
initial and subsequent measurement of the convertible note was not in
compliance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

d.  The investigation also found that the auditor failed to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to support the impairment assessment of
certain loans and accounts receivables and finance leases receivable
despite that numerous internal control weaknesses had been identified
and other evidence indicated that the financial assets might be
impaired.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)
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AEP

Impairment assessment

56 |

In an investigation relating to an impairment assessment of goodwiill
in the year of acquisition, we found that the auditor did not sufficiently
challenge and evaluate the reasonableness of certain key assumptions
and estimates used in the cash flow projections of the acquired
business that was in the early stage of development and failed to obtain
adequate audit evidence in this respect in accordance with applicable
auditing standards. In the subsequent year, the development of the
acquired business was further delayed. The investigation found that,
the auditor’s procedures were principally limited to enquiries with
management or technician and failed to (a) critically assess the status of
the business development, (b) question the reliability of the key estimates
and assumptions applied in the valuation including the expected
business growth rate and the consideration of other market conditions,
and (c) obtain further evidence to corroborate with management’s
representation.

In another case, the annual report clearly stated that due to the
prolonged unfavourable economic and market conditions, the listed
entity had suspended certain of its production plants and construction
project, and the Group incurred a gross loss. The investigation
revealed that the auditor (a) failed to properly assess the risks of
material misstatement in respect of the impairment assessment
of the production plants; (b) substantially relied on management’s
representation and failed to critically evaluate and question the
assumptions and estimates used in the profit forecasts provided by
the management in arriving at the recoverable amounts of the relevant
assets at the year end; and (c) failed to evaluate the work of the
auditor’s expert in respect of the discount rate adopted in the profit
forecasts.

When valuation provides a range of significantly different estimates,
auditor should understand the reasons for the differences and evaluate
the appropriateness of the key assumptions and estimates as well
as the method selected. In an investigation of an audit relating to
impairment assessment of certain intangible assets and exploration
and evaluation assets, it was found that the auditor concurred with
management, without critically evaluate the reasonableness of adopting
the high end of the range of valuations in determining the recoverable
amounts of the assets. Had a lower range of estimates been adopted,
a significant impairment loss would have been recognised. The
investigation further revealed that the auditor failed to challenge
management and valuer on a number of key assumptions including
the estimation of the production and sales volume, future prices and
discount rate used in the valuation.

In another case, despite the auditor assessed certain biological assets,
land lease payments and energy production technology as “high risk”
matters, the investigation found that the auditor failed to design and
perform audit procedures to address the assessed risks. In relation to
the determination of the fair value or recoverable amount of these assets,
the investigation further revealed that the auditor failed to adequately
perform procedures on the key assumptions and discount rate applied,
and the source data used in the valuations. The auditor also failed to
obtain reliable evidence in relation to the ownership of the biological
assets.
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Business combinations ESH

1.

In an investigation, we noted that the listed entity completed a “very
substantial acquisition” in relation to the acquisition of a hotel business.
Before and after the acquisition, the operations of the hotel were
licensed to a hotel management company which operated, managed
and maintained the hotel and received all the revenue generating from
the hotel operations, while the listed entity received a monthly income
consisted substantially of a fixed amount and a variable royalty fee from
the hotel management company. The hotel was accounted for as an
owner-managed hotel under HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.
The investigation found that the auditor failed to (a) properly plan and
assess risks of material misstatement in relation to the accounting of
the acquisition; and (b) perform or adequately perform procedures in
relation to the fair value measurement of the identifiable assets acquired
and the recognition of a gain on bargain purchase arising from the
acquisition. The auditor also failed to properly consider the substance
of the licensing arrangement and evaluate whether the accounting
treatment of the acquired hotel in the relevant financial statements was
appropriate.

In another investigation that involved a “very substantial acquisition”,
the listed entity acquired a business involving the development of
products relating to telecommunication and information technology. In
the annual financial statements, significant amounts of intangible assets
were recognised and a substantial part of these intangible assets was
determined to have indefinite useful life. The investigation found that
the auditor failed to perform or adequately perform audit procedures
on the acquisition-date fair value measurement of the intangible assets
acquired in the acquisition. Specifically, in evaluating the external
valuation, the auditor failed to consider the valuation method, assess
and question the reasonableness of the assumptions and estimations
used in the profit forecast provided by management despite the
fact that the business was in infant stage and subject to various
uncertainties and risks. The auditor also failed to properly consider the
reasonableness of the useful lives of the intangible assets and evaluate
the recoverable amount of the intangible assets for the purpose
of impairment assessment at the year end. The investigation also
revealed that the auditor failed to properly evaluate the classification
and measurement of the contingent consideration in the acquisition in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.
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MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)
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Financial instruments SRTHE

58 |

1.

A listed entity recognised an option granted by a subscriber to issue
convertible bonds within a year as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss and measured the option based on an external valuation.
Our investigation found that the auditor relied on the valuation provided
by the management’s expert as part of their audit evidence. However
the auditor failed to (a) obtain an understanding of the rationale for the
subscription arrangement and the relationship between the subscriber
and the listed entity; (b) adequately evaluate the work of the external
valuer in respect of the assumptions used, including the credit risk and
other non-performance risks of the subscriber and the future volatility
of the share price, in the fair value measurement of the option; and (c)
identify the omissions of disclosures in relation to financial risks and fair
value measurement relevant to the option which was significant to the
relevant financial statements.

In another case similar to the above, an option to issue convertible
bond was granted by a substantial shareholder of a listed entity. The
investigation found that the auditor failed to (a) properly assess the risks
of material misstatement including the rationale of the arrangement;
(b) obtain and assess evidence on the fair value measurement of the
option at its initial recognition; (c) adequately evaluate the assumptions
applied on the valuation of the option at the year end; and (d) identify
the omission of required disclosures in relation to the option in the
financial statements.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation requires issuer of financial
instrument, on initial recognition, to classify the instrument or its
component parts as a financial liability, a financial asset or an equity
instrument based on the substance of the contractual arrangement
and their definitions. Investigations were initiated on two sets of
financial statements of a listed entity which issued convertible note with
mandatory conversion feature but subject to contingent cash settlement
provisions upon the occurrence of certain events which were beyond
the control of the listed entity and the holder of the convertible note.
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Our investigations found that (a) the auditor in the year of issuance of the
convertible note failed to critically consider all the relevant terms of the
convertible note and exercise proper professional judgment to evaluate the
management’s accounting treatment of the convertible note; and (b) the
successive auditor failed to perform relevant procedures on the opening
balances in relation to the convertible note including review and consideration
of the prior year’s financial statements, the terms of the convertible notes
and the relevant provisions of HKAS 32 to evaluate the appropriateness
of the accounting treatment of the convertible note. The listed entity
subsequently corrected the non-compliance with accounting requirements
by retrospectively restated prior year financial statements in the year when
the convertible note was matured.
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Engagement quality control review

In each of the above completed investigations, we continuously found that
there were deficiencies in relation to the engagement quality control review.
In particular, there was a lack of evidence that key matters were considered
by the engagement quality control reviewer (EQCR) and how the EQCR
concluded on the reasonableness of the significant judgments reached by
the engagement team during the respective audits.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
EIEERWE

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Financial Reporting Council

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of the Financial Reporting Council set
out on pages 63 to 82, which comprise the statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the period from
1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019, and notes to the financial statements,
including significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Financial Reporting Council as at 30 September 2019, and of
its results of operations and cash flows for the period from 1 January 2019
to 30 September 2019 in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with section 18(2)
of the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 19(1) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards.
My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report. |
am independent of the Financial Reporting Council in accordance with those
standards, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with those standards. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other information

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information included in the Financial
Reporting Council’'s 2019 Annual Report, other than the financial statements
and my auditor’s report thereon.

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL « ANNUAL REPORT 2019
MIEERS « 20195 5K

& 35 5 17 BB B
B & =

B FEETRERE
R HERR

=5
HEEVEHN FE63F 82 B 1B 75 B BB 15 R
® - ZEVBHREBIEN201959 A30H BB FikR
FE2019F1 A1HE2019F9 AS0H HiR MR & Ik
AR - BEeEHERNMBALTER - URMBEHREAM
i BETEERBUR -

BB ZEMHHREACIEBERMBREENEE
10 AR 5 3 e Pok B4 7S B ¥R B 702019429 A 30 A B B ik
SR 20191 A1 HZE201949 A 30 H BRI MY 245 M
RemeE - WEIRR(HIEERBIEN ) (FE588%F )%
18 IRZ S o

EREER

BRI B E R BIEDDFE 190 E R B BN ELT
REQEITERG - WIRBERSEUMAAENEE - &7
BN AR E[ FAT A T K Fat T ARSI E (T ]
Mo - WIFZFED  BBUINYBERR  YERK
ZELAETEMBERET - RBE - HEGHE
SHRRESRIEE AR ET BRI AR -

HitbE#}
MSERDANREANEE - AN OEMBE
/520107 FHEANFEEH - BT OEHHRE
RAMHFHHRE -



My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that
fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Financial Reporting Council
for the financial statements

The Financial Reporting Council is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and section 18(2) of the Financial
Reporting Council Ordinance, and for such interal control as the Financial
Reporting Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Financial Reporting Council is
responsible for assessing its ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
pbasis of accounting.

The Financial Reporting Council is assisted by its Finance Committee in
discharging its responsibilities for overseeing the financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Financial Reporting Council’s internal control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Financial Reporting Council;

conclude on the appropriateness of the Financial Reporting Council’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Financial
Reporting Council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Financial
Reporting Council to cease to continue as a going concern; and

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.
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Hildy Chan
Assistant Director of Audit (Acting)
for Director of Audit

10 March 2020

Audit Commission
26th Floor
Immigration Tower

7 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LR e

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

mEWAR
201941 A1 HE201949 308 Hifs
(£BABTTIIR)

Nine months Twelve months
ended ended
30 September 31 December
Note 2019 2018
BZE2019F HE2018F
9H30H 12H31H
M=E EHE A IFt+={@A
Income PN
Annual contribution BEERAES 4 33,985,556 32,367,196
Interest income FEMA 5 1,959,414 787,030
Recovery of costs of investigations FE A E 5 549,044 742,951
Grant income EBIA 6 1,083,099 -
37,577,113 33,897,177
Expenditure F
Staff costs B TIAAR 7 (25,729,807) (81,829,961)
Audit oversight research and related FRTEBMER
expenses MR - (103,990)
Premises expenses LES g 8 (228,964) -
Corporate communications expenses HREBM 9 (474,061) (1,204,681)
Legal and professional fees FEREXER (565,971) (895,023)
Project expenses HE XM 10 (1,869,000) -
Interest on lease liability HEGEMNE 14 (167,458) -
Depreciation charge ESH
— Property, plant and equipment — W - BRERBM 13 (214,781) (349,574)
— Right-of-use asset —AEEE 14 (686,342) -
Other operating expenses Hib & ESH 1 (813,562) (814,474)
_______ (80,749,946) _ (35197,703)
Surplus/(deficit) and total HiR, ERBE ()R
comprehensive income BMEAWA
for the period/year 6,827,167 (1,300,526)

The notes on pages 67 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B &R R )

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 September 2019

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B REAR O 3R
201999 A30H
(EEABTTHIR)

30 September 31 December
Note 2019 2018
kg 20199A30H 20185 12H31H
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB EEN 13 2,590,578 680,176
Right-of-use asset EREEE 14 48,730,316 -
Intangible asset mEE 15 882,000 -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 52,202,894 680,176
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, receivables and prepayments  1&& - EUERF M B /1A 16 5,005,590 833,120
Time deposits with original maturities REHEIEZR=(EA
over three months TEHRF R 17 330,000,000 38,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents R MReEEY 18 113,169,429 6,586,060
Total current assets REEEAE 448,175,019 45,419,180
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable, accruals FEIERSR - FERTER
and other liabilities FEMEE 19 (3,810,768) (4,113,047)
Deferred income FEIEUA 6 (81,302,000) -
Lease liability HEBRE 14 (5,536,908) -
Total current liabilities REAEAE (90,649,676) (4,113,047)
Net current assets REBEEFE 357,525,343 41,306,133
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred income EIEYA 6 (317,614,901) -
Lease liability HEAE 14 (39,609,860) -
Provision for reinstatement cost BRI 20 (3,690,000) -
Total non-current liabilities FnmpameEaE 0000 (360,914,761) -
Net assets EEFE 48,813,476 41,986,309
Funds =i
General fund —MRES 21 48,813,476 21,986,309
Reserve fund #EE 21 - 20,000,000
Total funds wES 48,813,476 41,986,309

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 10 March 2020

Dr. Kelvin Wong, JP EX#E+ - KAF#+

Chairman /&

The notes on pages 67 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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Acting Chief Executive Officer ZFE7TIE 8%t
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2019¢1 A1HZ201949 308 Hif
(£BABTTIIR)

Note General fund Reserve fund Total funds
FaE —-RES HES nEs
At 1 January 2018 720181 A1H 23,286,835 20,000,000 43,286,835
Deficit and total comprehensive 20184 54t K 48 4R & Uk A
income for 2018 (1,300,526) - (1,300,526)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 H31H 21,986,309 20,000,000 41,986,309
At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 21,986,309 20,000,000 41,986,309
Surplus and total comprehensive  2019F & [ 4847 & WA
income for 2019 6,827,167 - 6,827,167
Transfer to general fund ERE—RED 21 20,000,000 (20,000,000) —
At 30 September 2019 A2019F9H30H 48,813,476 - 48,813,476

The notes on pages 67 to 82 form part of these financial statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B &R R )

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the period from 1 January 2019 to 30 September 2019

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BEenER
201941 A 1H 201949 A30 E #9FS
(RFEAETIITR)

Nine months Twelve months
ended ended
30 September 31 December
Note 2019 2018
HZ2019%F #HZ=20184F
9H30H 12A31H
B=E IESE B IF+—{@A
Cash flows from operating activities & EBELNEESHRE
Surplus/(deficit) for the period/year BN, FRAEs (B4t 6,827,167 (1,300,526)
Adjustments for: FHBIFE
Depreciation charge TEZHY 901,123 349,574
Interest income FEWA (1,959,414) (787,030)
Interest on lease liability HEBEMNE i 167,458 -
Loss on disposal of property, BEYE  RERIEVEE
plant and equipment = 7,242
5,936,334 (1,730,740)
Changes in working capital: LEEE
Increase in deposits, receivables 2e - BRUERRRIEN
and prepayments FRIEH N (3,218,533) (93,251)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts AR - ST ER
payable, accruals and other liabilities REMEECHD), N (890,279) 772,234
Increase in deferred income TEIEURAIE DN 398,916,901 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETEEERN
operating activities BEeRA/ ()38 400,744,423 (1,051,757)
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELNRESFRE
Payment for the purchase of property, BEYE  RERSEMHIA
plant and equipment ‘ (2,125,183) (757,346)
Payment for the purchase of BEEFEENA
intangible asset (294,000) -
Interest received A &R 1,005,477 641,916
Increase in time deposits with original REHBAZ R ={EA
maturities over three months TE BRTF 338 0 (292,000,000) -
Net cash outflow from investing RETHEENRESREFE
activities (293,413,706) (115,430)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFHELNREFRE
Lease payments HERR (747,348) -
Net cash outflow from financing RETEESANES R E4E
activities . (r47,348 -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBSSEYEM CHD)
and cash equivalents BEE 106,583,369 (1,167,187)
Cash and cash equivalents MAIENEERBESESEY
at 1 January 6,586,060 7,753,247
Cash and cash equivalents MA9H30R, 1283101
at 30 September/31 December HeERHRSZEEY 18 113,169,429 6,586,060

The notes on pages 67 to 82 form part of these financial statements.

MIEERS « 20195 5K

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL « ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FO7THE82E MM AR SRR —ID ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the period from 1 January to 30 September 2019
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

W AR R
20191 A1HE9A30H Hifd
(£BLABTTIIR)

1.

General Information

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was established in Hong Kong in
2006 under the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance (Cap. 588) (FRCO).
Its office address is 24th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.

The Legislative Council enacted the FRC (Amendment) Ordinance
2019 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) on 30 January 2019, which has
changed the role of the FRC with expanded functions effective from
1 October 2019 (the “New Regime”). As stipulated under the Amendment
Ordinance, the financial year end of the FRC has been changed from
31 December to 31 March and the first financial period under the
Amendment Ordinance would be for the period from 1 October 2019 to
31 March 2021.

The current financial reporting period covers the 9 months from
1 January to 30 September 2019 and the comparative figures cover
12-month period from 1 January to 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

As set out in the FRCO, the FRC is empowered to conduct investigations
concerning auditing and reporting irregularities by auditors of entities
listed in Hong Kong, and to make enquiries into non-compliance with
accounting requirements by listed entities in Hong Kong. Under the
Amendment Ordinance, the FRC is a full-fledged independent oversight
body and is responsible for the inspection, investigation and disciplinary
functions with regard to public interest entities (“PIE”) auditors,
recognition of overseas auditors and the oversight of the HKICPA’s
performance of registration, setting of standards on professional
ethics, auditing and assurance, and setting of continuing professional
development requirements in relation to PIE auditors. Its power to make
enquiries into non-compliance with accounting requirements by listed
entities in Hong Kong continues.

—REH
B 75 0B 37 B A 2006 4F 1R ¢ B F5 B8 3R /B 1601 )
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F10A 1B ARG EEIE R - & T B I5[E
WM (THHIE D) « RIBEETHROIAH
E o M ERENT R EER12A318E
AB3A31BKRE - MABBKSET &N/ & @8
K HEE i £2019%10 A1 B 2202143 A31
HERRE

AR B IR BR 20191 A1B E9H30H
IENER - mEbEsREF AR E201841 A1H
Z£12A318 1E+ =@ A H3fE -
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS HR 3R m)
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Statement of Compliance and Basis of
Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, under the historical cost convention and are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the FRC.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of IFRSs by the FRC. There are also no key assumptions
concerning the future, or other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL « ANNUAL REPORT 2019
MIEERS « 20195 5K

EREAK M BRRERELE

BRER
AR TR BRI ELRIREM
B o

mBESE

R TERR CARIBHFF B S B M LA
EamE - WA SER BN E AT
T~ ©

EEEERENTEBERMBERS ERRE T
BRE - BHEASTEFBROTE - A
RHEE - AfF - WANXHORE SRS
PRV E - (R HIER - AT ARER o Bl
SHAEBRRERBEAZEBRMEIAL RS
MARAEMNEMERMEL - MABER
TYREHIE B ATBEA B ZER BB EMIUR
ESMNEEMAREREEMNEE - BRE
AIBE BRI FfhAT -

MFERBE TH s & RAEF MAREMR
AR o AT IE S B 18 PR B R B 7 ¥R o R R B T
WRAFBROGTHE - EHRERH -
A RABREEEEMA B RESEAE
RERNRERTNERNRRL A AR KRS
BRARSEIEOEA T EERE -



Statement of Compliance and Basis of

Preparation of Financial Statements (continued)
Adoption of new/revised IFRSs

The following IFRS became effective in 2019 and has been adopted by
the FRC:

IFRS 16 Leases

On adoption of IFRS 16, a lease is recognised in the statement of
financial position as a right-of-use asset with a corresponding liability
recognised at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the FRC. The lease liability is measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the FRC’s incremental
borrowing rate as of the date of recognition. The incremental borrowing
rate is the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions. The lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. The extension
option is included in the lease term if it is reasonably certain that the
lease will be extended.

The FRC has not applied any new or revised IFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current accounting period. Based on the assessment
undertaken to date, their adoption will not have any significant financial
impact on the FRC’s financial statements.

Annual Contribution

The annual contribution is the principal source of revenue, which is
unconditional and non-refundable. It is measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable and is recognised when it becomes
receivable.

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (CRTF), the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) and the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(HKEX) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) regarding the
funding arrangements of the FRC up to and including the 2019 financial
year. Each party agreed to contribute an annual amount of $8.5 million to
the FRC in 2019 (2018: $8.1 million) for the recurring expenditure.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS HR 3R m)

5.

Interest Income and Recovery of Costs of
Investigations

Interest income was earned from time deposits and savings account.
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis using the effective
interest method.

Recovery of costs of investigations is recognised once the HKICPA’s
disciplinary decision becomes finalised.

Grant Income

In August 2019, the FRC received a grant of HK$400 million from the
Government to be utilised, during the period of migration to the New
Regime, to cushion the FRC against short-term fluctuations in the levy
income, to fund one-off capital and non-recurrent expenses, to allow
the FRC to gradually expand its manpower taking into account its
actual operational needs, and to provide a buffer for other exigencies
of circumstances. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to the grant.

The grant is recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position initially and is recognised as income on a systematic basis in
the statement of comprehensive income over the periods in which the
FRC recognises as expenses the related costs, including depreciation on
capital expenditure, for which the grant is intended to compensate.

MEWAR AE AU E
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A ERMEERBERERS(BEER
B E)BRAX LM HHAERS KA
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fEAREXH -

Deferred income EZEUT A
At 1 January 2019 M20195F1 A1H -
Grant received from the Government of the HKSAR B &R BFWEE B 400,000,000
Recognised as income in the period R AIBRWA (1,083,099)
At 30 September 2019 72019 9H30H 398,916,901
Less: Amount estimated to be recognised as income within one year B BRI R —FA
BRRBRAN S (81,302,000)
Amount classified under non-current liabilities NDER/IERDEESHE 317,614,901
30 September
2019
2019 9H30H
Representing: Rk
Current mE 81,302,000
Non-current IERH 317,614,901
398,916,901

Before the commencement of the New Regime on 1 October 2019,
part of the grant was utilised for the establishment of the new office and
the amount of the related cost incurred was recognised as income in
September 2019 to match the grant with the expenses incurred.
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7. Staff Costs

7. BT

Nine months

Twelve months

ended ended

30 September 31 December

2019 2018

B Z2019%F HZE2018F

9H30H 12H31H

IEN{EA IF+—{@A

Salaries, variable pay and bonuses N - F BB RIEAT 23,383,882 29,521,212
MPF contributions BEIMEATE AR 1,073,693 1,221,854
Staff recruitment expenses HEBTIZH 547,463 53,050
Medical and life insurance BERASRE 530,464 631,764
Staff training and development B TIE R e 16,314 195,881
Others H 177,991 206,200
25,729,807 31,829,961

Salaries, variable pay, bonuses and paid annual leave are accrued in
the period in which the employees rendered the associated services.
Bonuses are recognised when the FRC has a present legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events
and a reliable estimate can be made.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions. Contributions are made based on 5
percent of the employees’ gross salaries, except for the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) for whom only mandatory contributions are made. The
assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the FRC
in an independently administered fund. The employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme, except
for the employer additional voluntary contributions, which are refunded
to the FRC if an employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS HR 3R m)

7. Staff Costs (continued)

Except for the CEO, Council members are not remunerated. The above
staff costs included the emoluments of the CEO as stated below:

7. BIFA(E)

BRITEAREIN - MEERBREY EME -
A EBTHRAE B T THRAAEMSE

Nine months ended 30 September 2019

HZE2019F9H30H LN @A
Salary and MPF
variable pay contributions Total
R B
FEME DESMHI BE
Paul F. Winkelmann 1 = 1,029,000 4,500 1,033,500
Twelve months ended 31 December 2018
EHZ2018F12A31HIE+ A
Salaries and MPF
variable pay contributions Total
S SR Il
EE INT e “azE
Paul F. Winkelmann SR 4,158,000 18,000 4,176,000
1 Retired on 31 March 2019 1 201943 A31 B EHE
8. Premises Expenses 8. MHEXH
Nine months Twelve months
ended ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
HZE20195F HE2018F
9H30H 12H31H
ItHh@EA -+ =EA
Rates, management fees and i BEREBERTEAE
air-conditioning charge 158,242 -
Others HA 70,722 -
228,964 -

FRC entered into a lease agreement in July 2019 for its new office. The
lease term is from 1 September 2019 to 31 August 2023 with an option
to renew for a further term of two years and all the lease payments are
fixed.

Prior to relocation in December 2019, the office premises of the FRC
were provided by the CRTF at a nominal rent of $1 per annum. All the
related utility and sewage charges, outgoings, costs and expenses
incurred in repairing, maintaining and managing the office premises were
borne by the CRTF.
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9.

10.

11.

12.

Corporate Communications Expenses

9. HBEMH

Nine months

Twelve months

ended ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B Z2019%F HZE2018F
9H30H 12H31H
IEN{EA IF+—{@A
Promotion and public education R ARHSE 92,228 841,568
Events BB 247,085 33,111
Publications stk 132,348 151,907
Others HAith 2,400 178,095
474,061 1,204,681
Project Expenses 10. IEE X
Project expenses represent the consultant fee for conducting a study on 18 B X 8 BV TEIE R B E T R EF
remuneration and benefits for the FRC. MR ER -
Other Operating Expenses 1. HtEES
Nine months Twelve months
ended ended
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
B Z2019%F HE2018F
9H30H 12H31H
IEN{EA IF+—{@A
Conferences and duty visits SHEAERER 271,476 107,900
Professional liability insurance HEZTRE 16,272 25,155
Office equipment and fumniture expensed A EZEMRAM T 76,156 74,936
Printing, stationery and office expenses TED » XARRAERZ 449,658 606,483
813,562 814,474
In accordance with section 19 of the FRCO, the financial statements of BRI FEIERBIENYE19E - BEESRBD
the FRC are audited by the Director of Audit. No fee is charged for this NI ERERAEAEBEERAEER BRI
service. EUEUT RS ER -
Taxation 12. B8

Pursuant to section 16 of the FRCO, the FRC is exempt from taxation
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112).

BB BERBIEDDE 161K - MIFERD

E#RemEARBRBERDDI(FE 1128 )8
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B TS ¥R 3R )

13. Property, Plant and Equipment 13. 1% - RIERBM
Office
furniture Other office Leasehold
and fixtures Computers equipment  improvements Total
BAZE Hity
HKAREE Bl BWAERE HEMERE k]

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2018 201851 A1H 600,374 662,210 149,141 - 1,411,725
Additions BA - 687,356 69,990 - 757,346
Disposal RE - - (65,300) - (65,300)
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 600,374 1,349,566 163,831 - 2,113,771
At 1 January 2019 201951 A1H 600,374 1,349,566 163,831 - 2,113,771
Additions BA - - 255,319 1,869,864 2,125,183
At 30 September 2019 ®201959A30H 600,374 1,349,566 419,150 1,869,864 4,238,954
Accumulated depreciation 2itiE
At1 January 2018 2018F1 A1 (469,197) (571,134) (91,748) - (1,132,079
Charge for the year ERx (125,182) (205,779) (18,613) - (349,574)
Written back on disposal REREED - - 48,058 - 48,058
At 31 December 2018 72018F12A31H (594,379) (776,913) (62,303) - (1,433,59)
At 1 January 2019 2019F1 A1 (594,379) (776913) (62,303) - (1,433,595)
Charge for the period HAEE (1,740) (197,756) (15,285) - (214,781)
At 30 September 2019 R2019%9A30H (596,119) (974,669) (77,588) - (1,648,376)
Net book value FERE
At 30 September 2019 R201959A30A 4,255 374,897 341,562 1,869,864 2,590,578
At 31 December 2018 201812 A31H 5,995 572,653 101,528 - 680,176
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except that items costing
less than $5,000 are expensed when incurred. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment over its estimated useful life
after considering its estimated residual value. The respective useful lives
are as follows:

Office furniture and fixtures 1to 10 years
Computers 3 years
Other office equipment 7 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease term

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

Other office equipment and leasehold improvements consist of
expenditure of capital projects in the amounts of $240,000 and
$1,869,864 respectively, which were not completed and hence were not
subject to depreciation as at 30 September 2019. They will be subject to
depreciation upon completion of the projects.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain
or loss arising from the derecognition is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in
which the asset is derecognised.

At the reporting date, the FRC assesses whether there is any indication
that an item of property, plant and equipment may be impaired or a
previously recognised impairment loss no longer exists or may have
decreased. Following this year’s review, no impairment loss has been
recognised (2018: nil).

13. 1% ~ RigKEBH ()
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14. Lease

The lease for the new office (note 8) is recognised as a right-of-use asset
with a corresponding liability recognised at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use.

The lease liability was measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the FRC’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 September 2019. The incremental borrowing rate applied
to the lease liability on 1 September 2019 was 4.625%. The lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the lease term (estimated at 6 years) on a straight-line
basis. The extension option (2 years extension) is included in the lease
term as it is reasonably certain that the lease will be extended.

14. HE

MM AENEO(MEs) NEEEEA f(E
RERRERAREREEE X HEREM
fERfE -

HEaBERS THEREMNREFE - Wik
HZE2019F0 1B K EFRBRIEEEEF
RGLIE o B2019F9A1HERNEBHESR
BENREEERNR54625%  HEFES
DEREBRMEEEEP AR o BB ARE
HANAZEWRARNR  UFTEZHEaE
HEAREEBEAE o (FREEENLET A
6F MR ERERITE - ARAI &1
BEBERERE  AHoFNCHREED
BIERTEEZA -

Buildings
Right-of-use asset FRAEEE B¥
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2019 201941 81H -
Additions BA 49,416,658
At 30 September 2019 720199 H30H 49,416,658
Accumulated depreciation Z5HE
At 1 January 2019 2019491 81H -
Charge for the period HAS H (686,342)
At 30 September 2019 20199 H30H (686,342)
Net book value BREFE
At 30 September 2019 7A2019F9H30H 48,730,316
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14. Lease (continued) 14. HE (%)

30 September
2019
2019495308
Lease liability HEaE
Current E 5,536,908
Non-current JERED 39,609,860
45,146,768
30 September
2019
2019 9H30H
Maturity profile of lease liability HESB(EANRBERESRE)N
(contractual undiscounted cash flows): FHAARR -
— Within 12 months —12{@ AR 7,473,480
— After 12 months but within 24 months —12{8 A& BT~ HiE241E A 8,968,176
— After 24 months but within 60 months —244E B 1& 1B E601E A 26,904,528
— After 60 months —60f& A& 8,220,828
51,567,012
Rent free period has been taken into account in the maturity profile of the P& AEE B AR HIR -
lease liability.
Nine months
ended
30 September
2019
HZ20195
9A30H
IER@EA
Interest on lease liability HEESEBEFNE (167,458)
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15. Intangible Asset

16.

15. BILEE

Computer
software
BRL
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H -
Additions A 882,000
At 30 September 2019 720199 H30H 882,000
Net book value REFE
At 30 September 2019 20199 H30H 882,000

This represents the development cost of the case management system,
which was not completed as at 30 September 2019.

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment loss, if any. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off the cost of the case management system over its
estimated useful life of 5 years after considering its estimated residual
value. Amortisation commences when the case management system is
available for use.

Residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at the reporting date.

Deposits, Receivables and Prepayments

HEERMEERGMMBEKA - BRIMET
YEA201949 530 M ARTERK °

BB ERRANE R 5 KO ER K (10
B - B HIRER RGSFHAERS
I EEEMARER - NERRBHEEK
A EGL - #BHARMERERRAERR
i

Refe - AR B R A LR
BT - RAFHEY B -

16. € ~ BUYRF AN TR

30 September 31 December

2019 2018

2019498300 20184123318

Deposits e 2,806,970 700

Accounts receivable JFEULER X 41,360 -

Interest receivable FEUFI B 1,218,556 264,619
Prepayments TEfTFRIE

— Medical and life insurance —BE R ASRE 622,211 359,150

— Staff benefits —BI@EA 1,050 4,000

— Professional liability insurance —BEFERR - 13,595

— Others —EAfth 315,443 191,056

5,005,590 833,120

The accounts receivable is due within 30 days. Due to the short-
term nature of the balance, the carrying amount is considered to be
the same as its fair value. We do not provide an ageing analysis of
accounts receivable as there was no material overdue balance as at
30 September 2019.

Deposits as at 30 September 2019 mainly represent rental deposit.
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17.

18.

19.

Time Deposits with Original Maturities Over 17. REIE A S A =8 B W EHTER
Three Months
Time deposits with original maturities over three months carried fixed JREIEAE Z R =1l A 8 E BFER - REFEF
interest rates ranging from 2.11% to 2.23% (2018: 2.06% to 2.40%) FIZh2.11E %2235 8. (20184 : 2.06/2
per annum. The balances outstanding at 30 September 2019 and F2.40[F) - R2019F9A30H K& 2018412
31 December 2018 had maturities less than 12 months from the A31BM&SHN IS B H12E AR R E -
reporting date.
Cash and Cash Equivalents 18. RERBATEEY
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
201949H30H 2018%12A31H
Cash on hand FHmiRe 2,752 4,899
Current accounts X EEAIFR 305,792 487,315
Savings account HREFR 3,710,885 6,093,846
Time deposits with original maturities REIEAR TR =E AR
within three months EHTFR 109,150,000 -
113,169,429 6,586,060
ey eyess +h > =
Accounts payable, accruals and other liabilities ~ 19. B8R ~ FESTBERARHEMEARE
30 September 31 December
2019 2018
201949 H30H 2018%12831H
Accounts payable and accruals FETBR R R IERTE A 3,810,018 4,113,047
Receipts in advance TEWERIE 750 -
3,810,768 4,113,047

Receipts in advance represent the application fee income received in
advance for the recognition of overseas auditors of PIE under the New
Regime.

The balance will be recognised as revenue in the next reporting period
when the New Regime commences. Under the New Regime, the
application fee income is recognised as revenue when the service is
transferred.

YGRS R HIE TR AR MR E 8
BIMZBEN T TR R B A o

HIE B - AREHKN T —EREH
EHERBWA - EFHET - BEERRA
R IR HER BN ©

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL = ANNUAL REPORT 2019

MISERB » 2019F 3]

79



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B RS HR 3R m)

20.

21.

22.

80 |

Provision for Reinstatement Cost

In accordance with the lease agreement, the FRC is required to restore
the office premises to the original condition at the end of the lease term.
A provision has been recognised of the estimated expenditure. The cost
has been capitalised as part of the cost of right-of-use asset which is
depreciated over the lease term.

Funds

General fund represents the operating surplus of the FRC’s recurrent
funding.

Reserve fund represented the non-recurrent contributions received from
the CRTF, the HKICPA, the SFC and the HKEX at the establishment
of the FRC according to the MoU. Each party contributed a lump-sum
amount of $5 million which is not refundable. The reserve fund was to be
deployed to meet any inadequacies of the recurrent funding and other
exigencies of circumstances. The reserve fund was transferred to general
fund immediately before the commencement of the New Regime.

Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as follows:

20.

21,

22,

BERIREMAERE
RIFBEHH - MEERBANEHTER
BRDEERERAORR - BRI
X B - BRRARIEAEAEAE
RAR—BAEIAK - BREBAHRS
o

=i
—RESIRABERBE R A SRS
Bt -

RESEARZIMESEES LI
NE  BEGNBEIARBEFEETENR
UM BERBRARANIFEEEES - &
BBIRA—SENAEE - RES00BTHE
T RESAIREREEES TR MNEMES
BERTER - ZREFMTIEEIER - FHEEC
BRE—REE -

TRTITA
SESRITAMEESEMT -

30 September 31 December
2019 2018
201949H30H 2018F12A31H
Financial assets EREE
Deposits, accounts receivable and Ze - BRI
interest receivable FEUF B 4,066,886 265,319
Time deposits with original maturities REEIRZR={ERH
over three months TEHTFR 330,000,000 38,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 113,169,429 6,586,060
447,236,315 44,851,379
Financial liabilities SRAas
Accounts payable and accruals FER BRI IETE R 3,810,018 4,113,047
Lease liability HEAE
— Current —nE 5,536,908 -
— Non-current —JEmE 39,609,860 -
48,956,786 4,113,047
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22.

23.

Financial Instruments (continued)

The carrying amounts of the FRC’s financial assets and financial liabilities
approximate their fair values as at 30 September 2019 and 31 December
2018.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the FRC becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of an instrument. They are initially measured at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
No transaction costs have been incurred.

Financial assets

The objective of holding financial assets is to collect contractual cash
flows, which are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The recognition of a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on a financial asset measured at amortised cost is based on
the probability of default upon initial recognition and on-going assessment
of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. No
impairment loss has been recognised in 2019 (2018: nil).

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired or the FRC has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset.

Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the relevant obligation is
discharged, is cancelled or expires.

Financial Risks

Credit risk

The FRC'’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts receivable, time
deposits and other bank balances.

The recovery of the investigation costs is closely monitored by the
Council. Receivables from recovery of investigation costs are assessed
for recoverability on an individual basis based on the probability of default
upon initial recognition. On-going assessment is performed to determine
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The FRC
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

The Council approved an investment policy which, subject to other
limits, only allows the FRC to place deposits with licensed banks in Hong
Kong having regard to their credit rating. Those funds are deposited with
banks that have an “A” grade credit rating or higher as designated by
Moody’s or their equivalents. The policy also limits the amount placed
with each bank and the maximum duration the deposit is placed in order
to manage its credit risk.

22.

23.
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B RS HR 3R m)

23.

(@)

24,

Financial Risks (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The portfolio of deposits is managed and monitored to ensure it meets
the investment policy with monthly reports submitted to the Finance
Committee and bi-monthly reports to the Council. As a result, the FRC
is not exposed to significant credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets as set
out in the statement of financial position.

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment requirements,
their expected credit losses were minimal.

Liquidity risk

The FRC has a strong cash position and therefore has a very low level
of liquidity risk. The FRC maintains sufficient levels of cash and cash
equivalents and manages its working capital by carefully reviewing
forecasts on a regular basis. All financial liabilities except lease liability
were due to be repaid within three months (2018: three months) from
the reporting date. The maturity profile of the lease liability is disclosed in
note 14.

Market risk

Currency risk

The FRC receives its funding and settles its expenses in Hong Kong
dollars. Its financial assets and financial liabilities are all denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Hence, the FRC is not exposed to any currency risk.

Interest rate risk

The FRC'’s interest bearing assets mainly comprise funds placed in time
deposits with fixed interest rates. The FRC is subject to interest rate risk
where a volatile market exists. This risk is managed by having several
short term deposits.

Capital Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 30 September 2019 not provided
for in the financial statements were as follows:

23.

(@)

24,
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FIEm b
MBERBNENEEETEREEN K
ERER - EMSHBRRE - BBERBDS
EERNEER - MEERDEBHEEE TR
BEFAE R ZRER

BARESE
20199 A30H » RA MM NIEL#
BEOREEARENT -

31 December
2018
2018%12831H

30 September
2019
201949 H30H

EET#
EREEARERITH

Contracted for
Authorised but not contracted for
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS
ZESRZEENE

Honorary Advisory Panel
ZEREME

The function of the Honorary Advisers is to advise the FRC, including its committees and staff, with respect to any matter referred to
the Honorary Advisers by the FRC. The panel comprises highly respected individuals with a wide spectrum of professional expertise
who provide their advice and contributions to the FRC at the committee level. By leveraging on their wealth of experience, the FRC
has been able to discharge our statutory duties as an effective independent auditor regulator of Hong Kong.

FEERAARENHYBERRENNER  MUBERR(EREZEGRET ) RHEER - R EEMERAEARZEENINTEE
ZEERK o BEMMEENER  MBERBAIIABRUEEITRIEAT BB R AN B E R R E R -

Panel Members during the nine-month period ended 30 September 2019
RBIE2019 F9A30 A HABMEERE K&

Mr Roger Best, JP

Mr Best was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and is a former president of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). He has chaired the HKICPA Financial Reporting
Standards Committee and has also been a member of the IFRS Advisory Council.

HmELE KM
BMBELE BERBHEER S SMITNARA  LARNEESHIIAGEER B
BEENZEGIE  TEEEEMBHREENEREZESNKE -

b

EEE

Retired with effect from
2019-10-01 when appointed
as Board Member

R2019 % 10 A 1 HEZ(F
ABEF B EHEHIEF

Ms Melissa Brown

Ms Brown is a Partner at Daobridge Capital, a private investment advisory firm, where she focuses
on opportunities linked to sustainable investments in Asian markets. She also works as a specialist
consultant with the Institute for Energy Economics and Financial Analysis and the Asian Corporate
Governance Association. She is a member of the SFC Takeovers Panel and the HKEX Listing
Review Committee. She has previously served as a member of the HKEX Listing Committee,
as a government-appointed lay council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and on the UN PRI Advisory Council.

From: 2019-10-01 Melissa BrownX £
rom: 2019-10- | | “ o B
Current appointment expires Brown Zt&— %%L\A?X,é 5782 @ Daobridge Capital )& A + S FRETMNMIS A FHERE

on 2021-09-50 RS - e R TR RS BRANF RSN AT S AN ELEN - nEBER
g 20100 W%&AﬁanﬂE%x%ﬁtm%% A@ﬁaomﬁﬁﬁéé B LTEBERE - &

BEFMASRMERHEESRIKEALBSE PRIBEHZEGMKE -

Mr Clement Chan, MH

Mr Chan is the Managing Director — Assurance of BDO Limited and is a former president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has actively participated in standard-setting
and governance activities both in Hong Kong and at international level. Mr Chan is also a former
Chair of the Asian-Oceanian Standard Setters Group.

FREZEE G4 - REHE

BREEABEB L EEZCTMEEMERARETHNESTALIE - R AREESHIIASS
£ WERZEES KBRS EENRESES o M BTN EAEMN S ER S T
TBAEESE -

From 2015-12-11
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)
ZEShKEEBKE @

From 2019-10-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAAR © 2019-10-01
R - 2021-09-30

From 2019-04-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-03-31

EAIEER  2019-04-01
A% - 2021-03-31

From 2019-10-01

84 |

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

FRIER - 2019-10-01
FHRJE R - 2021-09-30

Dr Eva Chan

Dr Chan is the Head of Investor Relations of C C Land Holdings Limited. She is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Capital Environment Holdings Limited and an Adjunct Professor in the
School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is the Founding
Chairman of Hong Kong Investor Relations Association, a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. She is
also the Chairman of the Education Committee of HKICS. She is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

BRAGEE L

IS AT ABMIERAERARIREEBEEE - thEBHR[ERER R BINELIERITES -
HEEFBETIRESH REMERAMRRIYR - thETBREEBRHENAIRER  BAEH
WMEQE (HKICS) MFFTMERITHRABZEMNEREE  thIE HKICS HEZEEMESE - ity
REBGTMASNEFF A ARGTMAGNERGE -

Mr Andrew Chen

Mr Chen is the Executive Partner of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Ltd and is the former President of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors in 2018 and continues to be the council member of
the Society.

HEEE
RELEDPELESIMEFMERIFNITEBA » R 2018 FHEFBEASTNLEE
- BRECZEES-

Mr Michael Cheng

Mr Cheng is Head of Government Affairs & Public Relations, APAC of Invesco Hong Kong Limited.
He was previously MSCI Hong Kong Limited’s Executive Director of ESG Research and led their
APAC corporate governance research. He has also held senior positions at Hong Kong Exchanges
& Clearing Limited, Securities and Futures Commission, China International Capital Corporation and
the Asian Corporate Governance Association. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Securities
and Investment Institute and a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong.

BLELE

BRERRIEREEEERARTIARBNEB R AKBEIE - B MSCl ESG MIZE 81T
B WERF - EERg  PERAFMACCANEERR - hEH BB FNIREBGNEREE -
A B RS RAD -

FINANCIAL REPORTING COUNCIL « ANNUAL REPORT 2019

MIEERS « 20195 5K



From 2015-12-11
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

ERHER < 2015-12-11
Az - 2021-09-30

From 2019-05-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-04-30

EAIEER © 2019-05-01
LAfE# - 2021-04-30

b

.l

From 2019-04-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-03-31

EAER - 2019-04-01
EHfE - 2021-03-31

From 2013-04-01
Appointment expired on
2019-03-31

EAIHER  2013-04-01
EAfE - 2019-03-31

Mr Chew Fook Aun

Mr Chew has over 30 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance in the United Kingdom
and Hong Kong. He is currently the Deputy Chairman and Executive Director of Lai Sun Garment
(International) Limited and Lai Sun Development Company Limited, the Executive Director of eSun
Holdings Limited, and the Chairman and Executive Director of Lai Fung Holdings Limited.
BARZRE

FSEEHERENEBHEGE 30 FHE:T - |k  RRBNRKRBEERER AR LEM#E
BRERAFNEIEIERATES LEBERARAFTNWTEELBEERER QAN T FEH
WITES -

Mr Nicholas Debnam

Mr Debnam was an audit partner at KPMG until his retirement on 31 March 2017. He is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Wing On Company International Limited and an Executive
Committee Member and Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong Society for the Prevention of Cruelty
to Animals.

Nicholas Debnam 4
Debnam £ B SR EH LT ELNZTAERA - R 2017 F 3 A 31 BRI o WKL E
BERARKNBY N TEE LB BRI TN TEZETKERELERE -

Mr Addison Everett

Mr Everett has over 30 years of professional experience with PwC in China — Beijing and Hong
Kong SAR — and other countries/regions. He is currently PwC Risk, Quality and Compliance Leader
and also serves as the Senior Partner for a large PwC audit client in the financial services sector.
Previously, he provided a range of auditing, advisory and capital markets services to a number of
PwC’s largest clients. He also has experience leading business and functional units within PwC.
TEERE

il AR EROKEPEIER R 30 FHHEERBLR - TIENSFItRME B RIAT
WE - AREMBERNGME - BR] - MAESERETREEIBORKENRR  BE2EERAHEBE
EABA  TRKEE-—FRAESRBBIEEAZTFLPNEFARA - DB EEBEREER
KEBERABEFPREZER  BANBEATSERS - WHEREENE KB EBH
BRRE A PINRE LR -

Dr PM Kam, BBS

Dr Kam is a certified public accountant. He is a former CEO of the FRC. Prior to joining the FRC, he
was the Group Financial Controller of Jardine Matheson Limited.

HEXEL  BRFAEE

HIE LR —EG5HA0 - th B EMBERBNITHAER - RIMAFBERBD A - B ERMNERE
BRATSEEMBGRE o
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)
ZEShKEEBKE @

From 2019-10-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAAR © 2019-10-01
R - 2021-09-30

From 2012-12-11
Appointment expired on
2019-12-10

ERIER - 2012-12-11
A& - 2019-12-10

From 2017-01-15
Current appointment expires
on 2021-01-14

FHIER - 2017-01-156
EAEw - 2021-01-14

Ms Ashley Khoo

Ms Khoo, CFA, CPA, is an asset management and investment banking professional with
comprehensive buy-side and sell-side experience, inclusive of portfolio management, fundamental/
quantitative/pre-deal research covering Asian and China markets, multi-asset class investment,
and Big 4 financial advisory with financial institutions in Hong Kong and New York. She is a Board
Member of The Hong Kong Society of Financial Analysts and CFA Institute’s Presidents Council
Governance Committee Member. Ms Khoo served as the President of The Hong Kong Society of
Financial Analysts from 2016 to 2018.

BBzt

EZLtREEEEIRERITEEATL HEXENEARBEF LR  REREESEE - BM
RABTISHERE - 8t - ERARBRAIAR - ZLEERFIRE REEHER - RATBMK
DA G EE R B K CFA & 23k Presidents Council ESAZ B &% 5 - i 2016 F = 2018
FHREEEEMEITMESER -

Mr Edward Kwan, MH
Mr Kwan was formerly the Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services (Asia) Limited.

BRELE  REHE
LA REESSRRY (M) BRARTTHAE -

Mr Clement Kwok

Mr Kwok is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Hongkong and Shanghai
Hotels, Limited. He has served on the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange Hong Kong Limited
(SEHK), the Takeovers and Mergers Panel, the Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal, the Hang
Seng Index Advisory Committee and the Harbourfront Commission, as well as the Interpretations
Committee of the International Accounting Standards Board in London.

S EE
BRERBELEXNBEERARZ EFELIERITHAE - BEEEMSRIMABR AR (B
RA) METRE®  WELKEHEZES IR LHESHKLATHE  BEEEREREZES
BEEBEES  URUNRBNERSHENEZENMEZE S -
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From 2018-03-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

/:Z:gf?}?é(f"é‘ : 2018-03-01
(FAfEw - 2021-09-30

From 2013-01-10
Appointment expired on
2019-01-09

ERIER - 2013-01-10
LE @ - 2019-01-09

From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

AR 2019-10-01
FAER - 2021-09-30

Mr Anthony Leung

Mr Leung is the Assurance Leader of Ernst & Young member firms for Hong Kong and Macau. He is

a former member of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 2009

and completed the six-year term in 2015. He had previously served on the Professional Conduct

Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a member of both the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in

Australia.

RIREE

RELRELKBEBNRFIBARBZEIECRA  GEBBHARIMBERARLTEZEGERE
(£ 2009 £ 2015 FEFTMAFEH) - MNBEBESHMNASEXTREESEE - X4

EEBGMAEEE NG EtMASEE -

Dr Eric Li, GBS, JP

Dr Li is a the Honorary Chairman of ShineWing (HK) CPA Limited and an independent Non-
Executive Director of a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also a member of the 13th
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

FREHL  FEHNEE - AFHL
FELA/EXDN (FE) SMEEMERQRKLELIE  TEEELHK LM ARMNBEILIEHR
TEE - EEPEARBAHHEHES 13 E2EEZEE%E8 -

Mr Keith Lui

Mr Lui was the Executive Director (August 2006 — August 2019) of the Supervision of Markets
Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (SFC). During his service at the SFC, he was
the Chairman of the Investor Compensation Fund Committee, and the Securities Compensation
Fund Committee, and member of the Advisory Committee, Investment Committee, and SFC (HKEC
Listing) Committee. He was also a member of the Statutory Risk Management Committee of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. He had worked for various financial institutions in the US and
Hong Kong in the areas of deposit taking and lending, asset management and investment banking.

ELABEESLKPESHERLZE S (BET) MEERIPNTHAE (2006 F8 AE 2019 F
8H) -AERESTRYE wILECREEREESZEENESREESZEEIR UK
FHRES REZBENRES (FEXSMLM) ZRBEXE - IRBRBRSNEEME
RARDEERRERZEGNE - BAEXBENEFENZRSMBBIIE AEFRNER &
EEEMRERITER
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)
ZEShKEEBKE @

From 2015-01-15
Current appointment expires
on 2021-01-14

ERHER - 2015-01-15
FAEw - 2021-01-14

From 2015-12-11
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

From 2019-10-01

88 |

ERILER - 2015-12-11
A& - 2021-09-30

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAER - 2019-10-01
EHfE - 2021-09-30

Ms Teresa Ma
Ms Ma is an experienced lawyer and a mediator. She is a board member of and adviser to several
civil society organisations. She was a partner and a member of the International Board of Linklaters.

SEHLZL
FSREREFEMERAFREE - WHEBRARTEURBEIEETRNE MER - R FHE
REMEFANABALEBEREAGKE -

Mr Stephen Mercer

Mr Mercer is a partner with KPMG in Hong Kong and currently Deputy Head of Audit for KPMG
China.

EHBEEREEREBERA  BAIEREEESHTEEARBEIEEAREA °

Mr Francis Mok

Mr Mok is currently the Group HR Advisor of Hutchison Port Holdings Limited. He worked with
a wide range of corporations and companies, transforming HR practices and building leadership
pipelines for business sustainability. He is a Past President of the Hong Kong Institute of Human
Resources Management (HKIHRM), and a Past President of the Asia Pacific Federation of Human
Resource Management (APFHRM).

BEXRBiEE

BRABRINTSEOEEEGRATANERER ARSI ARDE  HOESHERANER
BEER - EFBANEREEEE (HKHRM) A€ & R KA HERE IR A S (APFHRM) Bl
=
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From 2015-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2019-12-10

ERHER < 2015-12-11
(FAfE R - 2019-12-10

From 2018-03-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EHIER - 2018-03-01
FRfER - 2021-09-30

From 2018-12-11
Resigned with effect from
2019-03-15

ERIEER - 2018-12-11
BHE : 2019-03-15

Mr Kenneth Morrison

Mr Morrison is a Senior Advisor of Mazars Hong Kong. He has served on several committees of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants including Accounting Standards, Practice
Review and Ethics. Currently, he serves on the Disciplinary Committee and the Audit Profession
Reform Working Group.

NEERE

XEEAEHEBATERR (B8 MAZEREH -twE2EZEAFES1MAS/NME - B
GEHER  MEEZLBERTRES - MBERLCAEZESNEAEXLEZR/NMEZKE -

Keith Pogson

Mr Pogson is the Global Assurance Leader for Banking & Capital Markets at Ernst & Young (EY),
and the Founder and former Regional Managing Partner of the Asia Pacific Financial Services
Practice of EY. He is the EY representative on the Bank Working Group of the Global Public Policy
Committee of the Big 4 + 2 firms. He is a former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) in 2012, and continues to be a member of the Regulatory Oversight
Board, the Audit Committee and the Disciplinary Panel of the HKICPA and was previously the Chair
of the Ethical Standard Setting Committee and the Assurance Standards Setting Committees of the
HKICPA. He is a member of the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform of the HKSAR Government.
Mr Pogson is a Fellow and Practicing Member of the HKICPA, a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales, a Member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute as
well as Member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance.

BIEE

BIEERET RRELKTARSHMREES - REZITHORITREATSREETRHLIE -
RN AKGET R EFAAR 2 A RBERE B giR1T TIENMEM KKK - 3 2012 FHER
BEMAgeR RIEASXEEEEZS S EXZESRAAENEANKE TEEEZE
EEXRTEAGTTZEGREFLEAGIFIZESNIRE - EBFBMI M LHEEGUREER
MITREBFARENEEHEEGNKE - MABESHMAGHNERNESE - RN
BN EAMASNERGE  BEABSRESGEE N EEEMBREE -

Mr Nicholas Sallnow-Smith

Mr Sallnow-Smith has over 40 years of experience in the finance and treasury field in the United
Kingdom and Asia, and has extensive knowledge of the property investment/management
industry in Hong Kong. He was Chairman of The Lion Rock Institute of Hong Kong from April
2016 until March 2019. He was previously Chairman of the Board of the REIT Manager Link Asset
Management Limited (2007-2016) and prior to that he was Chief Executive of Hongkong Land
Limited (2000-2007). He has also been actively involved in public service.

BB KE

FKBRSERNKBE RN SRR EREEAD 40 FLE58  WESBNMERE EEITER
BREEME - 70 2016 FF 4 AZE 2019 4 3 AREFEM FILESE/F - B R 2007 FZ 2016
FRRERREBRARARMNEESEE o AT - b0 2000 = 2007 FHEEEEEEEHEE
NAVNITIRER - thIF—BE BB EAHRE -
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)
ZEShKEEBKE @

From 2012-12-11
Appointment expired on
2019-12-10

EAER - 2012-12-11
(FAfE R - 2019-12-10

From 2018-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2020-12-10

EHIER - 2018-12-11
EEfE - 2020-12-10

=
il |
N

oA |

From 2018-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

ERER - 2018-12-11
A& - 2021-09-30

90 |

Mr Michael Scales

Mr Scales was previously Corporation Secretary of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. He also served as a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform, SFC Share Registrars Disciplinary Committee and SFC Dual Filing Advisory Group.
REfE

BASEEZETELE LSESRITERAFNARME - MtbBHEAREREEHLZES - &
FRA SRR E R E RN B ML ELEeNE A RSB E R L E R B EEEE
f/NERKE o

Mr Sin Chung-kai, SBS, JP

Mr Sin was a former Council Member of the Financial Reporting Council (2012-2018). He was a
Legislative Councillor representing the geographical constituency of Hong Kong Island (2012-2016).
He has served on several boards and NGOs including the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
(2008-2014) and the Hong Kong Tourism Board (2008-2014). He also served as a member of the
Council for Sustainable Development (2009-2013) and the Operations Review Committee and
Witness Protection Review Board Panel of the Independent Commission Against Corruption (2006-
2012). He served as a member of the Housing Authority (2001-2009) and was a board director of
the Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited (1999-2009).

BhEEE  REAER - AFHE

BERERVBERBAIKE (2012-2018) © b BH 2012 FF 2016 FRAREXBES M T ERN L
FEgEE  TEREZEAMEBNESS MERER - 82350 2008 F£F 2014 FAANICRER
REERKE - BREER 2008 FF 2014 FRAABFBIREERBKE © 2009 F = 2013 FHEE
AFERREZEENE @ AR 2006 FZ 2012 FREIBRBRABEEE SRBAANETE S MRHE
BABZEEEZEZE - BN 2001 F£ 200 FEAFEEZERZE + &N 1999 % 2009 4
BEBBRBESERAREER/NE °

Mr David Stannard
Mr Stannard is a corporate lawyer based in Hong Kong. He was Executive Director in charge of the
Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission (1999-2001), a member of the
Listing Committees of the Main Board and the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (2003-2008) and a member of the Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform (2003-2010).

BERESRE

PERE A AEEEANARIERAD o M 1990 FF 2001 FHIEA M EEHREREE %
BYEEPETTE S - 2003 FE 2008 FAEFBBMAX AR AR TIRMAIZER FHEZ8aeKE

2003 FZE 2010 F AR EEMNEBIREEEME
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From 2012-12-11
Appointment expired on
2019-12-10

EAER - 2012-12-11
(FAfE R - 2019-12-10

From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

ARG R © 2019-10-01
EA ) - 2021-09-30

From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EAIER - 2019-10-01
A& - 2021-09-30

Mr Stephen Taylor

Mr Taylor is a retired senior partner of Deloitte China where he was the national audit and assurance
technical department head and also led the Deloitte Asia Pacific IFRS centre of excellence based in
Hong Kong. He is currently Chairman of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Review Committee
prior to which he was Chairman of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Listing Committee. He was also
a former member of the International Accounting Standards Board IFRS Advisory Council.

Stephen Taylor%t 4

Stephen Taylor S BEEFEILAREREZA  BEEREBEFNEREFEERMIEE - [
KA EABEBRVERESENEEPOLHBTEELE - B IEREBBERIM ETMEZEZE
XFE - EAAAEBMAR I LITZESER - B ST ERIE e R BHIRELE
REEMZESMRIKE -

Mr Richard Tsang

Mr Tsang is the founder and Chairman of Strategic Public Relations Group. He is also a member of
the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene; member of the Hong Kong Council on
Smoking and Health; Member, Telecommunications Users and Consumers Advisory Committee,
Office of the Communications Authority; Deputy Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and Council Member of Hong Kong Q Mark Council.

ByELE

DAEERHBARBEBMEENRIPAREIE  TERVEREHLEXRANETES  HEREE
REEZES BEEERMAE -BMRBAFNEBESRAZEGCEE  URBBEFES
BEXENEERERHREEREE -

Ms Nancy Tse, JP

Ms Tse is an Independent Non-Executive Director of Wheelock and Company Limited, Link Asset
Management Limited (Manager of the Link REIT); DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited as well as HSBC
Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited. She is a member of the Board of Governors of the
Prince Philip Dental Hospital and is an Adjunct Professor of The Jockey Club School of Public
Health and Primary Care of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is the Deputy Chairman of
the Governance Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms Tse
holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Mathematics and a Master of Business Administration
in Finance/Accounting from the University of California, Los Angeles, the United States. She is a
chartered accountant qualified in Canada, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

BERLZLE  KE#HL
HETREELERAF  EREEEEARAR (AREHEREFEESNLRE) - 2RI
17 (FB) BRARNKEEREEXFTEA (F8) BRARINEIFATES - tEIFE TR
ERNEERKE  TARBEETXAZEFSSAHABLEREEBRERNTEHE - 1B
BHMAEEARZEGNEER - AT RHARBIRCEIMMNASBHBLETELBM RS/
S THERELTEM - MENERSTEM  BESHMAGERSERELEEEENE
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)
ZEShKEEBKE @

2@

From 2019-04-01

Current appointment expires
on 2021-03-31

ERER © 2019-04-01
R R - 2021-03-31

From 2015-12-11

Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

EHIER - 2015-12-11
FRfER - 2021-09-30

From 2019-10-01
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

92

FRIIER - 2019-10-01
FEfE R« 2021-09-30

Mr Andy Wong

Mr Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has approximately 28 years of professional experience in
assurance and business advisory services. Currently, he is the IPO leader of ShineWing (HK) CPA
Limited and a member partner of the firm’s Risk Management Committee.

ERERE

BRERRAGTMAGMEFFARSHMASE R - WAEFT MAXFERRE T EHEA I 28
FEEXER - BAT EEKTN (FE) STMEFMBERAANLTRBEEABANRZT
RBREREZEEMREABA -

Mr Huen Wong, BBS, JP

Mr Wong is the Principal of Fried Frank, Hong Kong office. He is the former President of the Inter-
Pacific Bar Association and the Law Society of Hong Kong. He is also the past Chairman of the
Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre.

THERE  WEAER - KAFHL
EREREARBEITEEDTTEREA - URAERATFEMNGERAEEZMESR - T
FBEBRPEP ORISR o

Mr Stephen Wong

Mr Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined
RSM Hong Kong in 1988 and was made partner in 1991. He is currently the Managing Partner
and Head of Audit and Assurance Services of RSM Hong Kong. Mr Wong is also a member of the
Transnational Audit Services Executive Committee of RSM Global which oversees the audit quality
of all RSM member firms over the world.

FEXKE
FTRERBBERGFED - 1988 FIMABRRXEFEMEL - RAZMETECKARBAHDEE
BIRA - ERERX [ERBAHEEERZEE] KB EEFANERERNEMEEE -
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Mr Jackson Woo

Mr Woo is the CEO of Challenge Capital Management Limited, a consultant of Guantao & Chow
Solicitors and Notaries and a director of Kailey and Fong Fun Group of Companies. He is also an
Independent Non-executive Director of Henderson Land Development Co. Ltd. He is a member
of the Public Shareholders Group, the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and the Takeovers Appeal
Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the
Main Board and GEM Listing Review Committees of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He
is a Qualified Solicitor in Australia, Hong Kong and England and Wales and is a Practising Solicitor

\_7/ Member of the Solicitors’ Disciplinary Tribunal Panel in Hong Kong.
Iguorrn;‘n2 tO ;gp;ggtorr:ent expires EE %( Eg 5*(3 i B
fo;f?'w AL REREREARATNITHAY BEEMBHEANEREREMNCERTSEENE
2 o o b RERREMEGRAFAGBIENTES - 2 EBBH RPEEHERZEEAR

RERD ) E - WELAHZEGNREBLRZEGKE - IAEBMERSMERAR ZE
RE GEM EHEZZBEKE - ERN - B8  RENBBLIHEAEXEHRMER B2
TRRMLEBRHEREEMKE

Mr Elton Yeung

Mr Yeung is the Vice-Chairman of PwC. He has extensive audit and business advisory experiences,
and has led numerous complex restructuring and listing engagements, including initial public
offerings of PRC state-owned and private-owned enterprises seeking listing in the US, HK and
Mainland China markets. He has in-depth understanding of relevant regulatory environment and
financial reporting requirements for listed companies.

BEREEEE

BRERERERBABEAMEBMEIER  SFR-—BZINETNEEZ AT ENEEXLE
From 2018-05.01 BEBESLESZFHEARBEEMELCENROHISEEN FHEAIER - HEEH - FEAKRPE

Current appointment expires W f@ Ey.?f ﬁﬁi}% E"] Eﬁ 'EEQ Eﬁ iﬁ ﬂ] Eﬁ f%i& %: g EIZ E 75 /575 A E"] T ﬂg °©
on 2020-02-29

FRIIER  2018-03-01
A& - 2020-02-29

Panel Members appointed after 1 October 2019
201910 A1 B R EZ XM EREK B

Prof Zabihollah Rezaee

Prof Rezaee is the Thompson-Hill Chair of Excellence and Professor of Accountancy at the
University of Memphis and has served a two-year term on the Standing Advisory Group of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB). He holds ten certifications including Certified
Public Accountant (CPA). He is currently the editor of the Journal of Forensic Accounting Research
(JFAR). Professor Rezaee has published over 225 articles and made more than 250 presentations,
written 14 books and served as expert witness.

Zabihollah Rezaee#(#%
Rezaee 1% & £ JEHT A E: Thompson-Hill 4t BB BT R 25T 2R - B AXE EFTARIES

gﬁ%ﬁg&;ﬁgemexpm EEBRR BE (PCAOB) M E RiHA/NMARISFE A THEREZER  BiEafMesttEs -1
on 2021-09-30 T CEEETHIFEETS) (Journal of Forensic Accounting Research) HI4R#8 © Rezaee 2R3 R T
AR < 2019-12-11 225 BN ER 250 Z BB NIRRT 14 AE - WEETHERFEA -

FAEw - 2021-09-30
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)
ZEShKEEBKE @

From 2020-02-05

Current appointment expires
on 2022-02-04

/f%’?}?a“/?@ : 2020-02-05
FAJEw - 2022-02-04

From 2020-02-05
Current appointment expires
on 2022-02-04

AR 2020-02-05
A - 2022-02-04

From 2019-12-11
Current appointment expires
on 2021-09-30

94

ERER - 2019-12-11
A& - 2021-09-30

Mr Paul Smith

Mr Smith is an independent corporate director. He served as President and CEO of CFA Institute
from January 2015 to September 2019. Previously he owned and ran Asia Alternative Asset
Partners, a Hong Kong Hedge Fund Group. He first came to Hong Kong in 1996 to run the Bank
of Bermuda’s securities servicing business and on sale to HSBC acted as Global Head of HSBC'’s
alternative funds servicing business. From 1984 to 1995 he worked for Ermitage International a
European fund manager spending the last seven years as CEO. He is a Fellow of the Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales, a Chartered Financial Analyst and holds a Master of Arts degree
from Oxford University.

Paul Smith%c 4

Smith £ RBYAFIESE - b 2015 F 1 AZE 2019 F 9 AETEHFESRI OIS EERT
BAAEL » LR - (bl RS F B HE S EE Asia Alternative Asset Partners © {7 1996 F &
TIREEE  REEREBRTNEFRGES  WHETELRET  BRECELRTIEES
RIS EBHZIKAEA o #1984 F5] 1995 F + b 7E Ermitage International FEEBUME S ALIE -
FEHREN 7 FRETEERTE - LS EEENEBITFTrgstlnE K8 - Fremoie -
W B EABHN X EFLEN] o

Mr Eric Tong

Mr Tong is an Audit & Assurance Partner of Deloitte China’s Financial Services Industry Group and
a Board Member of Deloitte China. He brings with him over 30 years of experience in auditing and
advising international and local banks and securities companies. He is the chairman for Deloitte INED
Club and was the leader for Financial Services Industry for Southern China. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He was the HKICPA President in 2018 and was the Chair for
Audit and Assurance Standards Committee, Securities Regulatory Advisory Panel and Branding
and Communication Advisory Panel and led a digitalisation project for the HKICPA. He received the
HKSAR Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service in July 2018 and is currently an
independent member of Task Force for Review on Enhancement of Lump Sum Grant Subvention
System, Labour and Welfare. He was a member of Policy Research Committee of Financial Services
Development Council between 2017 and 2019.

B¥R%E

BEAEREHTESRRBEZTNEEGRARESZRKE - BALEEBBERAMIRT - &5
NARHER LA ARS D ARG B 30 F&5R - RARHBUIFNTESTREIF - TEEE
FREDRSRSBRFEEREA - tHE2BBSHMAE RERE BB SFEMAEER
G8 R 2018FHAEREGHMASER  BENEEEIASTTHEZLNLZESREFFHK
EEERAETR YR BREHEREABER NEARBBEIRR - MR 2018 F 7 AERTTIK
REHBRBEGK - £ 2017 F£ 2019 FHRHETETL2RERBBERPAT/NEKE - BRIES
TRENREBICEEHFRMHE RN EE/NMBIKE -

Prof Wayne Yu

Prof Yu is a professor at the City University of Hong Kong. His teaching and research areas include
corporate governance, corporate finance, and capital markets. In addition, he has been serving as
a non-executive, independent director for a number of listed companies. He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst.

AR ISR
AMBIREEABMASOHE - MHHBEMARALBEARAIE - RAIMBIMEARTS © 1) -
EREZR EMARREMTELES - L RFF RO
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Financial Reporting Review Panel
Panel Convenors

Mr lan Farrar?

Mr Mark Johnson

Dr PM Kam, BBS

Mr Carmelo Lee, JP

Mrs Catherine Morley?

Mr Paul Shieh, SC

Mr Tang Kwai Chang

Mr Wong Kim Man'

Ms Priscilla Wong, BBS, JP
Mrs Betty Yuen, JP

Members

Prof Gary Biddle?

Mr Abraham Chan, SC
Mr Edmund Chan

Prof Cheng Cheng Shing
Mr Hamilton Cheng'
Prof Peter Cheng

Ms Yvonne Cheng, SC
Ms vy Cheung?

Mr Cheung Kwan Hoi?
Mr Jeckle Chiu

Mr Louis Chow

Ms Candy Fong’

Mr Tommy Fung

Mr Paul Hebditch?

Ms Joan Ho

Mr Byron Khoo!

Mr Carlyon Knight-Evans
Ms Kelly Kong

Mr Nelson Lam?

Mr Kenneth Lau'

Mr Leo Lee

Mr Ernest Lee

Mr Lee Yin-toa

Mr William Lo?

Ms Cynthia Lim?

Mr William Lim?

Ms Fanny Lung

Mr Bernard Mak

Prof Mo Lai Lan

Mr Christopher Morley
Mr Kenneth Morrison!
Ms Agnes Nardi

Mr Hong Ng2

Mr Paul Phenix?

Mr Simon John Riley"
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MEMBERSHIP OF BOARD AND PANELS (continued)

ZEEREZEEKE @)

Mr Patrick Antonio Rozario!
Ms Shelley So'

Mr Gary Stevenson'

Mr Eric Tang

Mr Hamilton Tang

Mr Jim Tang'

Ms Teo Chew Ping

Mr Tsui Hon Man

Mr Stephen Wong?

Mr Thomas Wong?

Ms Wendy Yuen

Ms Wendy Yung?

Prof Zhang Guo Chang

1 Appointed with effect from 16 July 2019
2 Term expired on 15 July 2019

Audit Investigation Board during 2019

Chairman

Mr Paul F. Winkelmann (ex-officio) (until 31 March 2019)
Ms Wincey Lam (ex-officio) (from 1 April to 30 September 2019)

Members

Mr TS Chan

Mr Andes Kwok
Ms Anna Lau

Ms Florence Wong
Ms Joyce Woo

Process Review Panel
Chairman
Mr Anthony Chow, SBS, JP

Members

Ms Florence Chan

Prof Low Chee Keong

Ms Edith Shih

Mr Tse Kam Keung

Dr Kelvin Wong, JP (ex-officio)
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